
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, June 12, 2024, 6:00 pm 
1st floor Community Room, Administrative Office 

138 S. Brandon Road., Fallbrook, CA 92028 
*All meetings are hybrid unless otherwise noted.  

 
*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 54953 teleconferencing will be used for this meeting. Board members, 
staff and members of the public will be able to participate by webinar by using the following link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85092529608?pwd=Y21JN1IyVUc2T3pnditjS3pQNHkxZz09 
Meeting ID: 850 9252 9608. Passcode: 336866 Participants will need to download the Zoom app on their mobile device.  Members 
of the public will also be able to participate by telephone using the following number: 
 +1-669-900-6833 Meeting ID: 850 9252 9608. Passcode: 336866  
 
 
 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER | ROLL CALL | ESTABLISH A QUORUM | PLEDGE OF 
 ALLEGIANCE- 
 
 
B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA- 
  
 
C. PRESENTATION – REINS- THERAPEUTIC HORSEMANSHIP PROGRAM  
 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS - ANNOUNCEMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on the Agenda at the time the item is being considered.  Members of 
the public may also speak on any item not listed on the Agenda which falls within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District immediately 
prior to Board Comments & Items for Subsequent Meetings section below.  Members of the public attending in-person need to fill-out a 
“Request to Speak” card and those attending by webinar need to raise their hand at this time and identify the Agenda item they would like to 
speak on. The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes. 

 
  
E. CONSENT ITEMS -   
  
 E1. Minutes of May 1, 2024, Finance Meeting 
 E2. Minutes of May 8, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting 
 E3. Minutes of May 15, 2024, Facilities Committee Meeting 
 E4. Finance Committee Report – Directors Jeffries and Stanicek 
 E5. Facilities Committee Report – Directors Jeffries and Mroz  
 E6. Community Health & Wellness Center Administrator Report- Theresa Geracitano 
 E7. Chief Executive Officer Report – Rachel Mason 

E8. General Counsel Report– Jeffrey Scott 
E9. Destruction of Electronic Stipend Records Years 2016-2020 and 281 Boxes of information 
 stored at Iron Mountain description below: 
 General Accounting: 149 boxes 

  Marketing: 3 Boxes 
  Admitting: 14 boxes 
  Human Resources: 115 boxes 

 
 
 
F. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS- 
 
 F1.  SiteLogiQ Allowance Expense Authorization and Change order 1 – Wellness Center   
  parking lot and ADA requirements at Administration 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85092529608?pwd=Y21JN1IyVUc2T3pnditjS3pQNHkxZz09


 
 F2. Grant Agreement 2024-2026: North County Fire Protection District  - Ambulance Cost Share 
 F3. Consideration of Resolution No. 463 – Annual Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year  
  2024-2025 
 F4. Re-elect Jo MacKenzie for CSDA Board of Directors, Southern Network, Seat A 
 F5. Youth Fitness Grant Impact Reports- Fallbrook Band Boosters, Fallbrook Bonsall Little League. 
 
G. INFORMATIONAL ITEM -  
 G1. Draft Review of the FRHD Policy Manual  
 
H. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS & ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS -  
  
  
 Announcements of upcoming events: 

See the District website event calendar at https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-
wellness-center  

 Facilities Committee Meeting Wednesday, June 19, 2024, at 10:00 am 
 Strategic Planning Committee Meeting Wednesday, June 19, 2024, at 6:00 pm 
 Government & Public Engagement Committee Meeting Wed., June 26, 2024, at 6:00 pm 
 Next Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, July 10, 2024, at 6:00 pm 
 

I. CLOSED SESSION 
 
I1. Personnel Matters pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) – CEO 

Annual Evaluation 
 

 
J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION  

 
   K. ADJOURNMENT-  
 
 
NOTE: I certify that on Friday, June 7, 2024 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of the Board of 
Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. The American with 
Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits 
of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior to the 
meeting at 760-731-9187. 
*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours before the meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
Executive Assistant / Board Clerk  

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-wellness-center
https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-wellness-center


PRESENTATION: 
 

REINS 

(RIDING EMPHASIZING INDIVIDUAL NEEDS & STRENGTHS) 

THERAPEUTIC HORSEMANSHIP PROGRAM 

EQUINE ASSISTED MENTAL HEALTH 



 

  
 

MINUTES 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, May 1, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. 
Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room 

138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook, CA  
 
 In accordance with California Government Code Section 54953 teleconferencing was used for this meeting. Board 
 members, staff and members of the public will be able to participate by webinar by using the following link:  
   
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
In Attendance- Directors Jeffries and Stanicek, CEO Rachel Mason, Administrative Officer 
Judith Oswald, Wellness Center Administrator Theresa Geracitano, Executive Assistant Raquel 
Williams, CPA Susan Woodward  

 
   
 Public Comments – Announcement- NONE 

 
 
 

 Presentation from Michelle Monaco, SVP/Managing Director from Five Star Bank- Ms. Monaco 
 gave a brief presentation on Five Star Banks investments and money market accounts.  
  

 
 Review of Financial Statements for March 2024 

 

Report 1 – Balance Sheet of March 2024 

Report 2 – Income Statement for the Month Ended March 2024 & Fiscal Year to Date 

Report 3 – Profit & Loss Actual vs YTD Budget – March 2024 

Report 4 – Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Statement March 2024 

Report 5 – CalTrust Statement – March 2024 

Report 6 – California CLASS Statement- March 2024 

FRHD Compliance Report 

Report 7 - Check Detail Report as of March 2024 

Report 8 – VISA Credit Card Statement – March 2024 

Report 9 – Community Development Disbursement as of March 2024 

 
5. Discussion Items- 
   



 
 a. Draft review of FY24-25 Budget- Addition of Zoom room costs for both admin and the  
  CH&WC space. No other amendments recommended. 
 b.  District credit card option – Five Star Bank- Need overall recommendation that we  
  pursue consolidation of accounts from Pacific Western Bank to Five Star Bank. Staff will  
  put forward a strategy and bring it back to the committee in June.  
 
 

6. Board Member Comments and Future Agenda Item- 

Next Finance Committee Meeting Wednesday, June 5, 2024, at 10:00 am. 

     

 

 7. Adjournment- 

 There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 10:34 AM.    
 
 
 

 
Executive Assistant/Board Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING  

Wednesday, May 8, 2024, 6:00 pm 
1st floor Community Room, Administrative Office 

138 S. Brandon Road., Fallbrook, CA 92028 
*All meetings are hybrid unless otherwise noted.  

 
*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 54953 teleconferencing was used for this meeting. Board members, staff 
and members of the public were able to participate by webinar by using the following link:   
 
 
 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM / PLEDGE OF 
 ALLEGIANCE- 
  
 Chair Bill Leach called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 In attendance: Directors Jennifer Jeffries, Mike Stanicek, Howard Salmon,  CEO Rachel  Mason, 
 Accountant Susan Woodward, Legal Counsel Jeffrey Scott   
 Staff members: Executive Assistant Raquel Williams, Administrative Officer Judith Oswald, 
 Community Health & Wellness Center Administrator Theresa Geracitano, Outreach & 
 Communications Coordinator, Jasmine Thomas, Bianca Heyming Programs Coordinator. 
  Members of the public: Roy Moosa, Sally Devito, Tom Frew 
 Director Barbara Mroz was absent.  
 
 
B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA- 

Action: It was moved by Director Jeffries seconded by Director Salmon to approve the agenda as 
presented. 

 Motion carried (4-0) 
 Director Leach…Aye 

Director Jeffries…Aye 
Director Stanicek…Aye 

 Director Salmon…Aye 
 
 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS - ANNOUNCEMENT 
 None 
  
D. PUBLIC HEARING-  
  
 D1. Public Hearing to Discuss and Consider the 2024/2025 District Fiscal Year Budget  
 CEO Mason opened the discussion and asked for public comment there being none the Board Chair 
 Leach asked about the significant increase on employee benefits. CEO Mason clarified that the increase 
 is attributed to higher costs and the most recent hire. There was a consensus on the appreciation of the 
 budget assumptions.  
  

Action: It was moved by Director Stanicek seconded by Director Salmon to approve the 2024/2025 
District Fiscal Year Budget as presented. 

 Motion carried (4-0) 
 Director Leach…Aye 

Director Jeffries…Aye 
Director Stanicek…Aye 

 Director Salmon…Aye 
 
 
 
E. PRESENTATION- North County Fire Protection District-  Fire Chief Keith McReynolds and Deputy 
 Fire Chief Brian MacMillan. Deputy Chief MacMillan gave an informative update on the Ambulance 
 Services they provide to the District and beyond. Fire Chief McReynolds conveyed his appreciation to 



 the Board for their outstanding partnership in providing top notch mobile medical services to the 
 District. Power Point presentation is attached to the minutes.  
 
 
F. CONSENT ITEMS - 
  
 F1. Minutes of April 3, 2024, Finance Meeting 
 F2. Minutes of April 10, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting 
 F3. Minutes of April 17, 2024, Facilities Meeting 
 F4. Minutes of April 17, 2024, Strategic Planning Meeting  
 F5. Finance Committee Report – Directors Jeffries and Stanicek 
 F6. Facilities Committee Report – Directors Jeffries and Mroz  
 F7. Community Health & Wellness Center Administrator Report- Theresa Geracitano 
 F8. Chief Executive Officer Report – Rachel Mason 

F9. General Counsel Report– Jeffrey Scott 
Action: It was moved by Director Jeffries seconded by Director Stanicek to approve the consent items 
as presented except F6 Facilities Committee Report for discussion.  

 Motion carried (4-0) 
 Director Leach…Aye 

Director Jeffries…Aye 
Director Stanicek…Aye 

 Director Salmon…Aye 
  
 Director Jeffries shared her recommendation with the Board of Directors to approve the proposal from 
 Encinitas Design Group there was a consensus.  
 
 
G. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS- 
  
 G1. Encinitas Design Group Proposal recommendation from the Facilities Committee 

Action: It was moved by Director Leach seconded by Director Salmon to approve item G1. Encinitas 
Design Group proposal  

 Motion carried (4-0) 
 Director Leach…Aye 

Director Jeffries…Aye 
Director Stanicek…Aye 

 Director Salmon…Aye 
  
 G2. Results from First Cohort of our Lifestyle Change Program- Theresa & Bianca 

Community Health & Wellness Center Administrator Theresa Geracitano opened the discussion about 
the results of the first cohort for the Skinny Genes/Diabetes Lifestyle Change program at the Wellness 
Center the data says it was a definite success for many of the participants. Our partnership with Skinny 
Genes Project is opening doors to some unique exposure-CDC and California Department of Public 
Health staff will observe one of our DPP sessions. United Us, which is the platform we use to transmit 
data to the CDC, is exploring a PR piece on how their software supported our successful DPP program.  
The expansion and addition of the demonstration kitchen at the Wellness Center will be a greater 
benefit to the District by teaching program participants better food options and smarter ways to prepare 
for their healthier lifestyle change.  
 
G3.  Brochure presentation – Communications Coordinator, Jasmine Thomas created the Districts 
first ever brochure. It has all the pertinent information and has QR (Quick Response)codes. The 
brochure was a hit with the Board and Staff. Attached to the minutes.  

  
 
H. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS & ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS -  
 Other Director/Staff discussion item-  



 Item(s) for future board agendas- 
 Announcements of upcoming events: 

See the District website event calendar at https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-
wellness-center  

 Facilities Committee Meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2024, at 10:00 am 
 Strategic Planning Committee Meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2024, at 6:00 pm 
 Next Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, June 12, 2024, at 6:00 pm 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT-  
  
 There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:23 PM.  
 

 

         
        Executive Assistant / Board Clerk  

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-wellness-center
https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-wellness-center


 

 
 

MINUTES 
FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, May 15, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. 
Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room  

138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook CA 92028 
 

In accordance with California Government Code Section 54953 teleconferencing was used for this meeting. Board members, staff and 
members of the public were able to participate by webinar by using the following link:  
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
In attendance- Director Jeffries and Director Mroz, CEO Rachel Mason, Community Health & 
Wellness Center Administrator Theresa Geracitano, Administrative Officer, Judith Oswald, 
Executive Assistant Raquel Williams, Property Manager Roy Moosa. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – ANNOUNCEMENT –  

NONE  
 

 
3. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 Ongoing/Completed Projects at the Community Health & Wellness Center 

a) Building A: Room 2-  Encinitas Design Group- CEO Mason shared with the committee that 

the existing footprint of Building A will increase, and Encinitas Design Group will be utilizing 

the Taylor Design Concept designs.   

b) SiteLogiQ update- CEO Mason informed the committee that the Administration parking lot 

is not level and will be requiring platforms for the ADA accessible parking spaces.  The 

removal of the Ficus trees will be necessary to accommodate for the construction phase. 

Minimal changes to the Center parking lot will be required to meet the ADA standards. Mr. 

Roy Moosa asked if the new lighting will adhere to the Dark Sky Ordinance. CEO Mason will 

gather more information for the committee.  

c)   Building B: Education Rooms 3-6 Conversion and Exterior Restrooms- arch 5 design; 

Director Jeffries started the discussion and asked about the Release and Limited Indemnify 

and Limitation of Liability.  CEO Mason informed the committee that Legal Counsel Jeff 

Scott has seen the contract and it has been revised accordingly. The committee shook 

hands and agreed to give their recommendation to hire arch 5 design. .  

 

 d) Zoom Rooms – Admin and Community Health & Wellness Center: Building B: Room 4- 



 
The committee concurred with CEO Mason about the need and upgrade of Zoom rooms for 

the Admin and Community Health & Wellness Center. It will be a great benefit for the District and 
the community.  

 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS- None  
 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT –  
 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 10:34am.  

  
 
 

 
Executive Assistant/Board Clerk  



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #1 - Balance Sheet Comparison

As of April 30, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:18 AM GMT-07:00   1/2

TOTAL

AS OF APR 30, 2024 AS OF MAR 31, 2024 (PP) % CHANGE

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Five Star Bank Account 592,412.46 250,000.00 136.96 %

Pacific Western Bank - Checking 1,173,605.32 453,180.49 158.97 %

Petty Cash 138.47 138.47 0.00 %

Total Bank Accounts $1,766,156.25 $703,318.96 151.12 %

Other Current Assets

Interest Receivable - LAIF 0.00 0.00

Loan Receivable - FRHD Foundation 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 %

Prepaid Insurance 6,053.04 9,079.54 (33.33 %)

Reimbursement Receivable - CDD (8.48) (8.48) 0.00 %

Tax Apportionment Receivable 76,943.59 838,085.01 (90.82 %)

Total Other Current Assets $107,988.15 $872,156.07 (87.62 %)

Total Current Assets $1,874,144.40 $1,575,475.03 18.96 %

Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation - All Buildings (293,124.40) (288,531.40) (1.59 %)

E. Mission Road 1,441,539.86 1,441,539.86 0.00 %

E. Mission Road - Improvements 1,777,885.05 1,773,235.05 0.26 %

E. Mission Road - Land 360,629.00 360,629.00 0.00 %

Total E. Mission Road 3,580,053.91 3,575,403.91 0.13 %

Equipment 85,471.17 85,471.17 0.00 %

Equipment - Depreciation (64,102.20) (63,210.78) (1.41 %)

S. Brandon Road 161,578.00 161,578.00 0.00 %

S. Brandon Road - Improvements 233,355.76 233,355.76 0.00 %

S. Brandon Road - Land 129,662.00 129,662.00 0.00 %

Total S. Brandon Road 524,595.76 524,595.76 0.00 %

Total Fixed Assets $3,832,894.24 $3,833,728.66 (0.02 %)

Other Assets

California Class 1,042,742.51 1,038,145.05 0.44 %

CalTrust - Liquidity Fund 1,024,422.94 1,019,902.88 0.44 %

CalTrust - Medium Term Fund 4,813,573.15 4,830,948.42 (0.36 %)

LAIF 1,486,311.28 1,470,338.44 1.09 %

Note Receivable - East Alvarado Street 0.00 342,779.56 (100.00 %)

Total Other Assets $8,367,049.88 $8,702,114.35 (3.85 %)

TOTAL ASSETS $14,074,088.52 $14,111,318.04 (0.26 %)



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #1 - Balance Sheet Comparison

As of April 30, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:18 AM GMT-07:00   2/2

TOTAL

AS OF APR 30, 2024 AS OF MAR 31, 2024 (PP) % CHANGE

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable (A/P) 1,190,555.77 1,203,181.43 (1.05 %)

Total Accounts Payable $1,190,555.77 $1,203,181.43 (1.05 %)

Credit Cards

Umpqua Bank - Credit Card 0.00 0.00

Total Credit Cards $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Other Current Liabilities

Payroll - Tax Payable 8,849.66 8,406.89 5.27 %

Payroll - Vacation & Sick Payable 39,825.84 39,825.84 0.00 %

Payroll - Wages Payable 22,368.89 21,290.46 5.07 %

Refundable Deposits - Rental Security 480.00 480.00 0.00 %

Simple IRA Plan - Payable 5,231.17 5,231.17 0.00 %

Total Other Current Liabilities $76,755.56 $75,234.36 2.02 %

Total Current Liabilities $1,267,311.33 $1,278,415.79 (0.87 %)

Total Liabilities $1,267,311.33 $1,278,415.79 (0.87 %)

Equity

Community Development Disbursement 8,596,578.12 8,596,578.12 0.00 %

Opening balance equity 0.00 0.00

Retained Earnings 0.00 0.00

Unrestricted Operations Fund 2,878,900.88 2,878,900.88 0.00 %

Net Income 1,331,298.19 1,357,423.25 (1.92 %)

Total Equity $12,806,777.19 $12,832,902.25 (0.20 %)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $14,074,088.52 $14,111,318.04 (0.26 %)



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #2 - Profit and Loss & Fiscal YTD

April 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:19 AM GMT-07:00   1/3

TOTAL

APR 2024 JUL 2023 - APR 2024 (YTD)

Income

Program Fees 500.00

Property Tax Revenue 76,943.59 2,459,503.51

Rental Income 680.00 2,040.00

Wellness Center Income - Event/Space Rental 450.00 825.00

Total Income $78,073.59 $2,462,868.51

GROSS PROFIT $78,073.59 $2,462,868.51

Expenses

Advertising & Promotions 2,347.46 14,640.79

Ask My Accountant 0.00

Auto Expenses 126.97 1,818.52

Bank Fees & Service Charges (4.75) 35.00

Community Health Contracts

Bonsall/Fallbrook Little League 5,000.00

Boys & Girls Club of North County 52,249.75

Boys Warriors Soccer Booster, Inc. 5,000.00

Community Health Systems, Inc. 45,000.00

Fallbrook Band Boosters 5,000.00

Fallbrook Food Pantry 56,250.00

Fallbrook Senior Citizens 35,250.00

Foundation for Senior Care 105,000.00

Michelle's Place Cancer Ctr 36,496.50

NC Fire JPA (EMSO) 64,064.31

Palomar Family Counseling 50,145.00

Reins Therapeutic Horsemanship Program 18,750.00

Total Community Health Contracts 478,205.56

District Direct Care Services

District Sponsored Events 352.51 4,940.49

Health Services & Clinics 4,200.00 40,318.42

Total District Direct Care Services 4,552.51 45,258.91

Dues & Subscriptions 217.00 20,155.97

Education & Conferences 2,216.43 27,118.86

Equipment Lease 1,592.55 16,157.37

General Insurance 2,715.58 27,372.62

IT Services 600.00 6,400.00

Legal & Accounting services

Accounting 3,500.00 33,871.25

Independent Audit 15,500.00

Legal 9,555.00

Total Legal & Accounting services 3,500.00 58,926.25



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #2 - Profit and Loss & Fiscal YTD

April 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:19 AM GMT-07:00   2/3

TOTAL

APR 2024 JUL 2023 - APR 2024 (YTD)

Medical Records Expense 2,755.41 26,693.98

Meeting Expenses 85.53 2,300.57

Office Expenses 241.50

General Office Expenses 357.90 3,510.97

Maintenance & Repairs 5,210.92 67,855.91

Office Equipment & Fixtures 9,355.63

Office Supplies 875.82 14,434.33

Postage & Shipping 195.50

Software & Website 2,419.93 17,712.95

Total Office Expenses 8,864.57 113,306.79

Other Tax and Licenses 25.00

Payroll Expenses

Board Stipends 1,764.00 19,514.25

Employee Benefits 6,850.54 79,408.36

Payroll Processing Fees 259.46 2,799.66

Payroll Taxes 4,665.26 46,445.93

Salaries 59,925.53 574,089.12

Simple IRA Match 1,781.74 14,001.25

Vacation & Sick Leave (7,328.12)

Workers Compensation (103.58) 4,017.70

Total Payroll Expenses 75,142.95 732,948.15

Property Management Fees 900.00 2,700.00

Utilities

Cell Phones 350.00 3,500.00

General Utilities 2,560.38 28,286.56

Internet/Telephone 1,039.63 12,433.67

Total Utilities 3,950.01 44,220.23

Total Expenses $109,562.22 $1,618,284.57

NET OPERATING INCOME $ (31,488.63) $844,583.94

Other Income

Interest/Dividend Income 10,398.61 261,633.17

Unrealized Gain/Loss - LAIF 39,669.25

Unrealized Gain/Loss CalTrust - Medium Term 449.38 35,547.95

Total Other Income $10,847.99 $336,850.37

Other Expenses

Community Development Disbursements (196,327.09)

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation Expense - Brandon Road 1,480.92 14,809.20

Depreciation Expense - Mission Road 4,003.50 40,035.00

Total Depreciation Expense 5,484.42 54,844.20



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #2 - Profit and Loss & Fiscal YTD

April 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:19 AM GMT-07:00   3/3

TOTAL

APR 2024 JUL 2023 - APR 2024 (YTD)

Other Miscellaneous Expense (8,380.99)

Total Other Expenses $5,484.42 $ (149,863.88)

NET OTHER INCOME $5,363.57 $486,714.25

NET INCOME $ (26,125.06) $1,331,298.19



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget
Income

   Property Tax Revenue 2,459,503.51 2,238,499.45 221,004.06 109.87%

   Rental Income 2,040.00 29,223.75 (27,183.75) 6.98%

Total Income  $      2,461,543.51  $      2,267,723.20  $         193,820.31 108.55%

Gross Profit  $      2,461,543.51  $      2,267,723.20  $         193,820.31 108.55%

Expenses

   Advertising & Promotions 7,161.00 27,825.00 (20,664.00) 25.74%

   Auto Expenses 1,313.75 1,580.60 (266.85) 83.12%

   Community Health Contracts 0.00 

      Boys & Girls Club of North County 52,249.75 47,249.75 5,000.00 110.58%

      Community Health Systems, Inc. 45,000.00 45,000.00 0.00 100.00%

      Fallbrook Food Pantry 56,250.00 56,250.00 0.00 100.00%

      Fallbrook Senior Citizens 35,250.00 35,250.00 0.00 100.00%

      Foundation for Senior Care 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00 100.00%

      Michelle's Place Cancer Ctr 36,496.50 36,496.50 0.00 100.00%

      NC Fire JPA (Ambulance) 195,000.00 (195,000.00) 0.00%

      Palomar Family Counseling 50,145.00 50,145.00 0.00 100.00%

      Reins Therapeutic Horsemanship Program 18,750.00 18,750.00 0.00 100.00%

   Total Community Health Contracts  $         399,141.25  $         589,141.25  $       (190,000.00) 67.75%

   District Direct Care Services 0.00 

      District Sponsored Events 1,432.91 2,250.00 (817.09) 63.68%

   Total District Direct Care Services  $            1,432.91  $            2,250.00  $              (817.09) 63.68%

   Dues & Subscriptions 19,210.97 20,325.00 (1,114.03) 94.52%

   Education & Conferences 24,549.25 19,600.00 4,949.25 125.25%

   Equipment Lease 8,156.02 16,164.50 (8,008.48) 50.46%

   General Insurance 13,736.31 12,665.40 1,070.91 108.46%

   IT Services 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 100.00%

   Legal & Accounting services 0.00 

      Accounting 33,871.25 30,000.00 3,871.25 112.90%

      Independent Audit 15,500.00 16,500.00 (1,000.00) 93.94%

      Legal 9,555.00 33,750.00 (24,195.00) 28.31%

   Total Legal & Accounting services  $           58,926.25  $           80,250.00  $         (21,323.75) 73.43%

   Medical Records Expense 25,316.28 25,928.50 (612.22) 97.64%

   Meeting Expenses 1,732.21 708.30 1,023.91 244.56%

   Office Expenses 0.00 

      General Office Expenses 2,277.65 2,000.00 277.65 113.88%

      Maintenance & Repairs 20,215.13 18,690.00 1,525.13 108.16%

      Office Supplies 4,870.73 7,000.00 (2,129.27) 69.58%

      Postage & Shipping 137.60 800.00 (662.40) 17.20%

      Software & Website 14,389.95 16,862.00 (2,472.05) 85.34%

Administrative

Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #3 - Budget vs. Actuals: FY 23-24 - Administrative Class

July 2023 - April 2024



   Total Office Expenses  $           41,891.06  $           45,352.00  $           (3,460.94) 92.37%

   Payroll Expenses 0.00 

      Board Stipends 19,514.25 34,500.00 (14,985.75) 56.56%

      Employee Benefits 35,223.25 70,519.50 (35,296.25) 49.95%

      Payroll Processing Fees 2,317.37 3,319.80 (1,002.43) 69.80%

      Payroll Taxes 31,231.83 29,509.50 1,722.33 105.84%

      Salaries 367,397.35 368,868.30 (1,470.95) 99.60%

      Simple IRA Match 9,166.47 11,066.00 (1,899.53) 82.83%

      Workers Compensation 2,463.10 920.00 1,543.10 267.73%

   Total Payroll Expenses  $         467,313.62  $         518,703.10  $         (51,389.48) 90.09%

   Property Management Fees 2,700.00 500.00 2,200.00 540.00%

   Utilities 0.00 

      Cell Phones 2,000.00 1,250.00 750.00 160.00%

      General Utilities 11,850.46 11,290.00 560.46 104.96%

      Internet/Phone (deleted) 5,100.00 (5,100.00) 0.00%

   Total Utilities  $           13,850.46  $           17,640.00  $           (3,789.54) 78.52%

Total Expenses  $      1,089,431.34  $      1,381,633.65  $       (292,202.31) 78.85%

Net Operating Income  $      1,372,112.17  $         886,089.55  $         486,022.62 154.85%

Other Income

   Interest/Dividend Income 261,633.17 66,718.83 194,914.34 392.14%

Total Other Income  $         261,633.17  $           66,718.83  $         194,914.34 392.14%

Net Other Income  $         261,633.17  $           66,718.83  $         194,914.34 392.14%

Net Income  $      1,633,745.34  $         952,808.38  $         680,936.96 171.47%

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:21:17 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget
Income

   Program Fees 500.00 5,000.00 (4,500.00) 10.00%

   Wellness Center Income - Event/Space Rental 825.00 1,000.00 (175.00) 82.50%

Total Income  $            1,325.00  $            6,000.00  $           (4,675.00) 22.08%

Gross Profit  $            1,325.00  $            6,000.00  $           (4,675.00) 22.08%

Expenses

   Advertising & Promotions 7,479.79 18,580.00 (11,100.21) 40.26%

   District Direct Care Services 0.00 

      District Sponsored Events 3,507.58 11,000.00 (7,492.42) 31.89%

      Health Services & Clinics 40,318.42 126,500.00 (86,181.58) 31.87%

   Total District Direct Care Services  $           43,826.00  $         137,500.00  $         (93,674.00) 31.87%

   Dues & Subscriptions 945.00 1,210.00 (265.00) 78.10%

   Education & Conferences 2,569.61 11,750.00 (9,180.39) 21.87%

   Equipment Lease 8,001.35 9,430.50 (1,429.15) 84.85%

   General Insurance 13,636.31 12,665.40 970.91 107.67%

   IT Services 3,400.00 3,000.00 400.00 113.33%

   Legal & Accounting services 0.00 

      Legal 11,250.00 (11,250.00) 0.00%

   Total Legal & Accounting services  $                       -    $           11,250.00  $         (11,250.00) 0.00%

   Meeting Expenses 568.36 250.00 318.36 227.34%

   Office Expenses 0.00 

      General Office Expenses 1,233.32 1,500.00 (266.68) 82.22%

      Maintenance & Repairs 47,640.78 35,850.00 11,790.78 132.89%

      Office Supplies 9,563.60 15,000.00 (5,436.40) 63.76%

   Total Office Expenses  $           58,437.70  $           52,350.00  $            6,087.70 111.63%

   Payroll Expenses 0.00 

      Employee Benefits 44,185.11 56,415.60 (12,230.49) 78.32%

      Payroll Processing Fees 482.29 1,854.60 (1,372.31) 26.01%

      Payroll Taxes 15,214.10 16,485.50 (1,271.40) 92.29%

      Salaries 206,691.77 206,068.30 623.47 100.30%

      Simple IRA Match 4,834.77 6,182.00 (1,347.23) 78.21%

      Workers Compensation 1,554.60 700.00 854.60 222.09%

   Total Payroll Expenses  $         272,962.64  $         287,706.00  $         (14,743.36) 94.88%

   Property Management Fees 500.00 (500.00) 0.00%

   Utilities 0.00 

      Cell Phones 1,500.00 1,000.00 500.00 150.00%

      General Utilities 16,436.10 14,850.00 1,586.10 110.68%

      Internet/Phone (deleted) 5,400.00 (5,400.00) 0.00%

   Total Utilities  $           17,936.10  $           21,250.00  $           (3,313.90) 84.41%

Total Expenses  $         429,762.86  $         567,441.90  $       (137,679.04) 75.74%

Wellness Center

Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #3 - Budget vs. Actuals: FY 23-24 - Wellness Center

July 2023 - April 2024



Net Operating Income  $       (428,437.86)  $       (561,441.90)  $         133,004.04 76.31%

Net Income  $       (428,437.86)  $       (561,441.90)  $         133,004.04 76.31%

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:27:25 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



 Local Agency Investment Fund
 P.O. Box 942809
 Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
(916) 653-3001

May 02, 2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR
138 SOUTH BRANDON ROAD
FALLBROOK, CA  92028

Account Number: 

April 2024 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

4/15/2024 4/12/2024 QRD 1750441 N/A SYSTEM 15,972.84

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 15,972.84  Beginning Balance: 1,470,338.44

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 1,486,311.28

5/2/24, 11 21 AM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https //laifms treasurer ca gov/RegularStatement aspx 1/1





0000078-0000323 PDFT     645113               

Fallbrook Regional Health District
138 South Brandon Road
Fallbrook, CA 92028

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

Summary Statement
April 30, 2024

Page 1 of 3

Investor ID: 

California CLASS

California CLASS Average Monthly Yield: 5.4028%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD

Average Daily
Balance

Month End
Balance

FRHD_CLASS_Prime 1,038,145.05 0.00 0.00 4,597.46 18,546.34 1,038,298.30 1,042,742.51

TOTAL 1,038,145.05 0.00 0.00 4,597.46 18,546.34 1,038,298.30 1,042,742.51





Daily Rates
April 30, 2024

Page 3 of 3

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

Performance results are shown net of all fees and expenses and reflect the reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. Many factors affect performance including changes in
market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No
assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or
investment decision may incur losses.

California CLASS

California CLASS

Date Dividend Rate Daily Yield

04/01/2024 0.000147976 5.4159%
04/02/2024 0.000148276 5.4269%
04/03/2024 0.000148007 5.4170%
04/04/2024 0.000147868 5.4120%
04/05/2024 0.000443427 5.4098%
04/06/2024 0.000000000 5.4098%
04/07/2024 0.000000000 5.4098%
04/08/2024 0.000147874 5.4122%
04/09/2024 0.000147704 5.4060%
04/10/2024 0.000147791 5.4092%
04/11/2024 0.000147788 5.4091%
04/12/2024 0.000443118 5.4060%
04/13/2024 0.000000000 5.4060%
04/14/2024 0.000000000 5.4060%
04/15/2024 0.000147746 5.4075%
04/16/2024 0.000147898 5.4131%
04/17/2024 0.000147779 5.4087%
04/18/2024 0.000147538 5.3999%
04/19/2024 0.000441714 5.3889%
04/20/2024 0.000000000 5.3889%
04/21/2024 0.000000000 5.3889%
04/22/2024 0.000147161 5.3861%
04/23/2024 0.000146940 5.3780%
04/24/2024 0.000147365 5.3936%
04/25/2024 0.000147775 5.4086%
04/26/2024 0.000443496 5.4107%
04/27/2024 0.000000000 5.4107%
04/28/2024 0.000000000 5.4107%
04/29/2024 0.000147940 5.4146%
04/30/2024 0.000145352 5.3199%



Our mission is to assist residents of Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow and De Luz, 
to lead healthy lives, supporting a greater life span and independence. 

El Fallbrook Regional Health District ayuda a los residentes a llevar una vida 
saludable, apoyando una mayor esperanza de vida e independencia. 

 
 
 

 
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) 

Through the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), the State Treasurer invests taxpayers’ money to 
manage the State’s cash flow and strengthen the financial security of local governmental entities. PMIA 
policy sets as primary investment objectives safety, liquidity and yield. 

As of April 30, 2024, the District’s balance was $1,486,311.28. This represents 17.77% of the District’s 
investment portfolio. The Average Monthly Effective Yield for the month of April, 2024 was 4.272%. In 
April, 2024, the District reported $15,972.84 in quarterly earnings. 

CalTRUST 

The CalTRUST Board works closely with the investment manager, State Street Global Advisors, to 
ensure that public dollars are managed securely and efficiently and are in full compliance with California 
Law. The primary objective is to safeguard the preservation of principal. 

The District is invested in two CalTRUST Funds: Medium Term Fund and Liquidity Fund. As of April, 
2024, the District’s closing Net Asset Value was $5,837,996.09. This represents 69.77% of the District’s 
investment portfolio. 

In April, 2024, the District earned $21,843.37 in dividend income and reported $39,638.42 in unrealized 
losses. The One Year Yield on the Medium-Term Fund was 3.82% and the One Year Yield on the 
Liquidity Fund was 5.51%. 

California CLASS 

The California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (California CLASS) is a pooled investment 
option that invests in high-quality, short-to-medium-term securities that prioritizes principal preservation. 
The California CLASS management has appointed Public Trust Advisors, LLC to serve as the Investment 
Advisor and Administrator. As of April, 2024, the District’s balance was $1,042,742.51. This represents 
12.46% of the District’s investment portfolio. In April, 2024, the District reported $4,597.46 in earnings. 
The 30-day average yield was 5.4028%. 

The investments of the District are in compliance with the District’s 2023-2024 Investment Policy. The 
balances in the District’s investment accounts give the District the ability to meet its expenditure 
requirements for the next eighteen (18) months. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
138 S. Brandon Road, Fallbrook, CA 92028  P: 760.731.9187  F: 760.731.9131  fallbrookhealth.org 



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   1/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

24 Hour Elevator Inc.

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14128 (249.17) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 163837 249.17 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Amazon Capital Services

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14121 (86.01) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 1XTV-NMMK-RGQP 86.01 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14129 (111.99) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/04/2024 Bill 11NW-RPVK-16L7 111.99 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14153 (74.87) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/19/2024 Bill 74.87 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14170 (57.85) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/24/2024 Bill 17VF-K7Cf-K61M 57.85 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

California Association of Nonprofits

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14130 (250.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 25273 250.00 Dues & Subscriptions

CalPERS

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14150 (8,694.77) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/15/2024 Bill CalPers ID 1559595490 8,694.77 -Split-

CellGate

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14171 (88.20) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

05/01/2024 Bill 81130-IN 88.20 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Culligan of Escondido

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14131 (63.28) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 1093624 63.28 Office Expenses:General Office Expenses

Culligan of San Diego

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14132 (90.44) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 1411026 90.44 Office Expenses:General Office Expenses

Darren Key

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14114 (75.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/25/2024 Bill 03252024 75.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Fallbrook Chamber of Commerce

04/16/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14147 (30.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/10/2024 Bill FF 30.00 Advertising & Promotions

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14172 (20.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill FF - District 20.00 Advertising & Promotions

Fallbrook Printing Corporation



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   2/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14152 (533.70) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/18/2024 Bill 25490 533.70 -Split-

Fallbrook Rooter & Drain Service

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14173 (175.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill 23914 175.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Fallbrook Waste & Recycling - E. Mission

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14133 (295.03) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 20-T3 452088 295.03 Utilities:General Utilities

Fallbrook Waste & Recycling - S. Brandon

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14134 (96.50) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 20-T1 441078 96.50 Utilities:General Utilities

Fowler Pest Control, Inc.

04/16/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14146 (246.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/09/2024 Bill 261298 158.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

04/09/2024 Bill 261299 88.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

FPUD - 7720-001

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14108 (287.52) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/21/2024 Bill 03212024 287.52 Utilities:General Utilities

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14174 (323.92) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/23/2024 Bill 7720-001 323.92 Utilities:General Utilities

FPUD - 7720-002 - E. Mission Rd.

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14109 (52.09) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/21/2024 Bill 03212024 52.09 Utilities:General Utilities

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14175 (52.09) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/24/2024 Bill 7720-002 52.09 Utilities:General Utilities

FPUD - 7720-003 - E. Mission Rd.

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14110 (225.23) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/21/2024 Bill 03212024 225.23 Utilities:General Utilities

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14176 (216.34) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/23/2024 Bill 7720-003 216.34 Utilities:General Utilities

FPUD - 7721-000

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14111 (52.09) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/21/2024 Bill 03212024 52.09 Utilities:General Utilities

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14177 (52.09) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/23/2024 Bill 7721-000 52.09 Utilities:General Utilities

Iron Mountain



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   3/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14122 (2,669.12) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill JJHM198 2,669.12 Medical Records Expense

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14178 (2,755.41) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill JKML938 2,755.41 -Split-

Jan-Pro Commercial Cleaning

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14124 (920.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 113772 920.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14179 (920.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

05/01/2024 Bill 115123 920.00 Office Expenses:General Office Expenses

Jasmine Thomas

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14120 (39.13) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/29/2024 Bill Mileage Reimbursement 39.13 Auto Expenses

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14180 (19.77) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill 04302024 19.77 Auto Expenses

JK Drywall and Construction

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14155 (4,650.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/16/2024 Bill INV0215 4,650.00 E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements

Juana Diaz

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14135 (180.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/03/2024 Bill 379461 180.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

04/16/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14148 (180.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/10/2024 Bill 379462 180.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14151 (180.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/17/2024 Bill 379463 180.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14181 (180.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/24/2024 Bill 379464 180.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

JW Mechanical

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14190 (488.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/24/2024 Bill 13842424 488.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Knight Security & Fire Systems

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14136 (44.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 188749 44.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Konica Minolta

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14137 (1,592.55) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/05/2024 Bill 44529395 1,592.55 -Split-

LDC Always Green Landscape

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14138 (1,350.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   4/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

03/31/2024 Bill 1283 270.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

03/31/2024 Bill 1282 1,080.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Leslie Salmon

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14182 (300.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 03312024 300.00 District Direct Care Services:Health Services & Clinics

My Parking Sign

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14118 (53.77) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/28/2024 Bill MPS-845155 53.77 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

Palomar Family Counseling Service Inc.

04/16/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14145 (2,185.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 12935 2,185.00 District Direct Care Services:Health Services & Clinics

Portero Services

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14123 (2,000.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 3322 2,000.00 Legal & Accounting services:Accounting

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14183 (2,000.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill 3339 2,000.00 Legal & Accounting services:Accounting

Protera CPR

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14115 (1,100.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/27/2024 Bill 31920778 1,100.00 District Direct Care Services:District Sponsored Events

Quality Gate, Inc.

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14184 (145.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/24/2024 Bill 10774 145.00 Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs

Rotary Club of Fallbrook

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14139 (546.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/03/2024 Bill 52 182.00 Dues & Subscriptions

03/31/2024 Bill 3503 182.00 Dues & Subscriptions

03/31/2024 Bill 3603 182.00 Dues & Subscriptions

Rotary Club of Fallbrook Village

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14140 (35.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/03/2024 Bill 2883 35.00 Dues & Subscriptions

Safe and Sound Security

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14127 (75.87) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/02/2024 Bill 25751 75.87 Office Expenses:General Office Expenses

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14185 (75.87) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill 26400 75.87 Office Expenses:General Office Expenses



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   5/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

SDG&E - 5971 - E. Mission

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14116 (886.58) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/27/2024 Bill 03272024 886.58 Utilities:General Utilities

SDG&E - 6994 - Brandon

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14117 (642.16) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/27/2024 Bill 03272024 642.16 Utilities:General Utilities

Spectrum - Mission

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14113 (539.93) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/22/2024 Bill 60354032224 539.93 Utilities:Internet/Telephone

Spectrum Business-Brandon

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14112 (339.94) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/21/2024 Bill 60321032124 339.94 Utilities:Internet/Telephone

Springston Design LLC

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14125 (600.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill INV-0064 600.00 -Split-

Sun Realty

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14186 (900.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill Jan-April 900.00 Property Management Fees

Susan Woodward

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14141 (1,500.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill March 2024 1,500.00 Legal & Accounting services:Accounting

T-Mobile

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14126 (79.88) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 04012024 79.88 -Split-

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14187 (79.88) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill Acct 989429125 79.88 -Split-

Theresa Geracitano-reimburse

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14154 (124.10) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/23/2024 Bill Parking reimbursement 16.90 Education & Conferences

04/23/2024 Bill Mileage 107.20 Auto Expenses

Tracy Rosalee

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14142 (20.10) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill Mileage reimbursement 20.10 Auto Expenses



Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #7 - Check Detail

April 2024

  Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:28 AM GMT-07:00   6/6

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM AMOUNT SPLIT

Uline

04/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14149 (397.97) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 175955008 397.97 Office Expenses:Office Supplies

UMPQUA Bank

04/09/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14143 (5,200.91) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

03/31/2024 Bill 03312024-2 4,267.48 -Split-

03/31/2024 Bill 03312024 933.43 -Split-

Village News

04/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14119 (2,111.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/01/2024 Bill 27884 1,395.00 Advertising & Promotions

03/28/2024 Bill 27803 716.00 Advertising & Promotions

04/30/2024 Bill Payment (Check) 14188 (358.00) Pacific Western Bank - Checking

04/30/2024 Bill 28404 358.00 Advertising & Promotions



 Account Inquiries

BL ACCT 00002840-20000001
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST

Account Number: #### #### #### 7117
Page  1  of  4

UMPQUA BANK
PO BOX 35142 - LB1181
SEATTLE WA 98124-5142

Go to www.umpquabank.com

PLEASE DETACH COUPON AND RETURN PAYMENT USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE - ALLOW UP TO 7 DAYS FOR RECEIPT

UMPQUA BANK COMMERCIAL CARD OPS
PO BOX 35142 - LB1181
SEATTLE  WA  98124-5142

04/30/24 05/25/24   

 - *                 

38
80

6

Write us at PO BOX 35142 - LB1181, SEATTLE, WA
98124-5142

MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO:

 Payment Summary

NEW BALANCE $3,136.65

MINIMUM PAYMENT $3,136.65

PAYMENT DUE DATE 05/25/2024

BL ACCT 00002840-20000001
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST
138 SOUTH BRANDON ROAD
FALLBROOK CA 92028

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT ENCLOSED

.$
Payment Due Date

$3,136.65$3,136.65

Closing Date Total Minimum
Payment Due

New Balance

Call us at: (866) 777-9013  
Lost or Stolen Card: (866) 839-3485  

  Credit Summary

Total Credit Line $12,000.00

Available Credit Line $8,863.35

Available Cash $0.00

Amount Over Credit Line $0.00

Amount Past Due $0.00

Disputed Amount $0.00

Check box to indicate
name/address change
on back of this coupon

#### #### #### 7117#### #### #### 7117
Account Number

BL ACCT 00002840-20000001
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST

Account Number: ####-####-####-7117
Page  1  of  4

 Account Summary

Billing Cycle 04/30/2024

Days In Billing Cycle 30

Previous Balance $933.43

Purchases + $2,991.47

Cash + $0.00

Balance Transfers + $0.00

Special + $0.00

Credits - $39.75-

Payments - $5,200.91-

Other Charges + $4,452.41

Finance Charges + $0.00

NEW BALANCE $3,136.65

09 0004 7117 0000 0000 00000000 00000000 0

(V
þ
Ê
)

 Corporate Activity
TOTAL CORPORATE ACTIVITY $748.50-

Trans Date Post Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount
04/16 04/17 70005604108555108930018 PAYMENT - THANK YOU SPOKANE WA $5,200.91-
04/16 04/25 70005604116777116520017 MISCELLANEOUS DEBIT $4,452.41

NOTE: Grace period to avoid a finance charge on purchases, pay 
entire new balance by payment due date.  Finance charge accrues on 
cash advances until paid and will be billed on your next statement.



40121 - 38806  

BL ACCT 00002840-20000001
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST
Account Number: #### #### #### 7117
Page  3  of  4

BL ACCT 00002840-20000001
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST
Account Number: #### #### #### 7117
Page  3  of  4

 Cardholder Account Summary

JUDITH OSWALD
#### #### #### 3997

Payments & Other
Credits
$39.75-

Purchases & Other
Charges
$110.00

Cash Advances

$0.00

Total Activity

$70.25

 Cardholder Account Detail
Trans Date Post Date Plan Name Reference Number Description Amount

03/31 04/25 PPLN01 70005604116777116540015 LATE FEE - REVERSAL   $35.00-
03/31 04/25 PPLN01 70005604116777116550014 FINANCE CHARGE CREDIT   $4.75-
04/27 04/28 PPLN01 24906414118198843395707 EIG*CONSTANTCONTACT.COM 855-2295506

MA 
$110.00

 Cardholder Account Summary

RACHEL MASON
#### #### #### 2600

Payments & Other
Credits
$0.00

Purchases & Other
Charges
$1,751.44

Cash Advances

$0.00

Total Activity

$1,751.44

 Cardholder Account Detail
Trans Date Post Date Plan Name Reference Number Description Amount

04/01 04/03 PPLN01 24071054093627186124086 CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DIS 916-4427887 CA $230.00
04/04 04/05 PPLN01 24692164095102796887617 WWW COSTCO COM 800-955-2292 WA $116.60
04/05 04/07 PPLN01 24692164096103287348316 WWW COSTCO COM 800-955-2292 WA $24.78
04/10 04/12 PPLN01 24231684102837001300072 ALBERTSONS #4786 FALLBROOK CA $85.53
04/15 04/16 PPLN01 24055224107400440004236 SMARTSIGN clover.com NY $37.99
04/24 04/25 PPLN01 24492154115715938973810 UBER   TRIP HELP.UBER.COM CA $28.97
04/26 04/28 PPLN01 24755424118281182690515 SHERATON SACRAMENTO CA $1,076.51
04/27 04/28 PPLN01 24492154118743382961377 UBER   TRIP HELP.UBER.COM CA $27.94
04/26 04/28 PPLN01 24692164118101308979683 ESQUIRE GRILLE SMF SACRAMENTO CA $26.54
04/25 04/28 PPLN01 24755424117261178679913 SHERATON GRAND DINING SACRAMENTO

CA 
$11.06

04/26 04/28 PPLN01 24427334117740292588331 MCDONALD'S F20163 ESCONDIDO CA $11.52
04/26 04/28 PPLN01 24034544118003770649606 82518 - ALADDIN AIRPORT P SAN DIEGO CA $74.00

 Cardholder Account Summary

THERESA GERACITANO
#### #### #### 9073

Payments & Other
Credits
$0.00

Purchases & Other
Charges
$1,130.03

Cash Advances

$0.00

Total Activity

$1,130.03

 Cardholder Account Detail
Trans Date Post Date Plan Name Reference Number Description Amount

04/01 04/02 PPLN01 24055224093400446006132 SMARTSIGN clover.com NY $53.77
04/04 04/05 PPLN01 24692164095102178640378 AMZN Mktp US*EQ69H2VM3 Amzn.com/bill WA $10.76
04/14 04/16 PPLN01 24943004106206288003765 THE FISH MARKET SD SAN DIEGO CA $25.49
04/15 04/17 PPLN01 24755424107171078587649 EMBASSY SUITES SAN DIEGO CA $20.00
04/16 04/17 PPLN01 24137464107100257484752 TST* BRIGANTINE PORTSIDE SAN DIEGO

CA 
$48.54

04/17 04/19 PPLN01 24692164109104054506065 MARRIOTT MISSION VALLE SAN DIEGO CA $585.82
04/17 04/19 PPLN01 24692164109103927800887 TST* PUESTO AT THE HEADQU San Diego

CA 
$33.14

04/29 04/30 PPLN01 24164074120069222952456 FEDEX OFFIC90500009050 VISTA CA $352.51



40121 - 38806  

Page  4  of  4

  Finance Charge Summary / Plan Level Information
Plan

Name
Plan

Description
FCM1 Average

Daily Balance
Periodic
Rate *

Corresponding
APR

Finance
Charges

Effective APR
Fees **

Effective
APR

Ending
Balance

Purchases
PPLN01

001
PURCHASE E $0.00 0.06008%(D) 21.9900% $0.00 $0.00 0.0000% $3,136.65

Cash
CPLN01

001
 CASH A $0.00 0.06554%(D) 23.9900% $0.00 $0.00 0.0000% $0.00

 * Periodic Rate (M)=Monthly (D)=Daily Days In Billing Cycle:  30
 ** includes cash advance and foreign currency fees APR = Annual Percentage Rate
1 FCM = Finance Charge Method

(V) = Variable Rate  If you have a variable rate account the periodic rate and Annual Percentage Rate (APR) may vary.    



 Account Inquiries

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT ENCLOSED
Closing Date Total Activity

PLEASE DETACH COUPON AND RETURN PAYMENT USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE - ALLOW UP TO 7 DAYS FOR RECEIPT

UMPQUA BANK COMMERCIAL CARD OPS
PO BOX 35142 - LB1181
SEATTLE  WA  98124-5142

UMPQUA BANK
PO BOX 35142 - LB1181
SEATTLE WA 98124-5142

04/30/24

 - *                 

 Account Summary

Credit Limit $4,500.00

Billing Cycle 04/30/2024

Days In Billing Cycle 30

Purchases and Other Charges + $4,342.41-

Cash + $0.00

Balance Transfer + $0.00

Credits - $39.75-

Payments - $0.00

TOTAL ACTIVITY $4,382.16 -

JUDITH OSWALD
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST
138 SOUTH BRANDON ROAD
FALLBROOK CA 92028-2205 37

90
8

MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO:

**Memo Statement ** No Payment Required

#### #### #### 3997#### #### #### 3997
Account Number

.$$0.00

Go to www.umpquabank.com

Write us at PO BOX 35142 - LB1181, SEATTLE, WA
98124-5142

Call us at: (866) 777-9013  
Lost or Stolen Card: (866) 839-3485  

Check box to indicate
name/address change
on back of this coupon

JUDITH OSWALD
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST

Account Number: #### #### #### 3997
Page  1  of  2

JUDITH OSWALD
FALLBROOK REG HEALTH DIST

Account Number: ####-####-####-3997
Page  1  of  2

08 0397 3997 0000 0000 00000000 00000000 0

(U
è
þ
)

 Cardholder Account Summary
Trans Date Post Date Reference Number Description Amount

04/03 04/04 24492154094713429839108 ADOBE  *ADOBE 408-536-6000 CA 149.93
04/03 04/04 24005944094300738178578 GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFIC CHICAGO IL 35.00
03/31 04/25 70005604116777116540015 LATE FEE - REVERSAL   35.00 -
03/31 04/25 70005604116777116550014 FINANCE CHARGE CREDIT   4.75 -
04/16 04/25 70005604116777116510018 PAYMENT THANK YOU   4,452.41 -
04/27 04/28 24906414118198843395707 EIG*CONSTANTCONTACT.COM 855-2295506 MA 110.00



Date Num Name Memo/Description Split Amount
Outstanding 

Balance

Administration
04/24/2024 13842424 JW Mechanical Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs 488.00 

Total for Administration  $              488.00 

Wellness Center
07/14/2023 22448 Brand Assassins Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs 2,478.00 

08/06/2023 EST224 JK Drywall and Construction E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 3,450.00 

08/06/2023 EST223 JK Drywall and Construction E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 5,800.00 

08/06/2023 EST222 JK Drywall and Construction E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 2,800.00 

08/06/2023 EST221 JK Drywall and Construction E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 6,200.00 

08/08/2023 166962042 Uline Office Expenses:Office Supplies 2,316.71 

08/09/2023 MASON2 Langdon Floorcovering E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 7,000.00 

08/16/2023 23336 Fallbrook Rooter & Drain Service Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs 612.44 

08/23/2023 167560567 Uline Office Expenses:Office Equipment & Fixtures 3,718.50 

09/06/2023 Prop# 16369623 JW Mechanical E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 7,982.50 

Q1  $43,603.19 09/28/2023 169058645 Uline
Chairs
Utility Wagon Office Expenses:Office Equipment & Fixtures 1,245.04 

10/17/2023 169780260 Uline Community Development Disbursement Office Expenses:Office Equipment & Fixtures 3,719.12 

10/26/2023 1636102623 JW Mechanical Community Development Disbursement E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 4,732.50 

11/21/2023 JW Mechanical CHWC - A-2 - CDD E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 4,732.50 

12/06/2023 163612623 JW Mechanical E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 10,000.00 

12/18/2023 23785 Safe and Sound Security E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 11,958.18 

Q2  $37,432.30 12/27/2023 6873 KARN Engineering & Surveying Survey for new ramps at WC Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs 2,290.00 

01/01/2024 163612623 JW Mechanical E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 9,785.00 

01/01/2024 04012023-11302023 Rob Holmes CDD - Parking Lot consulting Office Expenses:Maintenance & Repairs 687.50 

02/19/2024 1050 Active Power Solutions CDD - CHWC-Bldg A - room 1 E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 3,149.00 

02/26/2024 6924 KARN Engineering & Surveying E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 3,600.00 

SitelogIQ 1,313,109.00 

Q3  $148,532.40 02/29/2024 PUBCAL 005320 SitelogIQ E. Mission Road:E. Mission Road - Improvements 131,310.90 1,181,798.10 

5/21/2024 SitelogIQ Payment on Invoice PUBCAL 005320 213,138.63 968,659.47 

Total for Wellness Center  $       442,706.52 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 12:19:33 PM GMT-7

Fallbrook Regional Health District
Report #9 - Community Development Disbursements

July 2023 - April 2024



 

 

 

Wellness Center Administrator Report – June 2024 

 

• May was another great month at the Wellness Center. One highlight has been seeing the Center 
participants getting excited about the growth in activity and events happening each month.  

• May’s Wellness Wednesday event was well attended and included hearing screenings, and the 
Fallbrook Family Health Center (CHSICA) mobile unit. They will participate every other month in the 
event and will be offering on-site acute visits with a nurse practitioner or dentist.  

• June Programming: 
o Wellness Wednesday program workshop will be on Alzheimer’s and Brain Health. In addition to 

our typical blood pressure, blood glucose and BMI we are hoping to offer a cognitive screening 
test.  

o This will be our last month of our trial with Interfaith mobile unit.  We have seen 6-8 
appointments with the case workers each monthly visit and hope to continue with the program.  
It has been a great support to Katia as she able to refer clients to Interfaith for onsite 
appointments.  

o CPR Class for local businesses. June’s CPR class is in partnership with the Fallbrook Chamber of 
Commerce and encourages businesses to bring their AED for training and understand the 
importance of keeping their device “rescue-ready”.  

o Youth Advocates Mental Health First Aid will be offered in June for adults who work with youth. 
• Cohort 3 of our Lifestyle Change Diabetes Prevention Program is scheduled to start in early to mid-

August.  
• Chair Yoga Class is halfway through its first cohort and planning is underway for the second cohort. 

Here is a short update on the class from the instructor:  

As we've completed 4 weeks of the Chair Yoga Class, this is a short update. All in all, this is a great 
group - all are interested in learning - not just about yoga, but also about their bodies (muscles, 
fascia, bones). I am especially impressed that they are checking in with one another, whether 
they've known the person from before or not -- building a small community, so to speak.   

One of the first things I noted was that each person in class has a challenge of some sort - some are 
caretakers, some have sore knees, some more serious issues. Importantly, they are looking for 
connection to others. 

Our class begins with a short foot massage (I gifted each a small pink ball which they faithfully bring 
to class). The massage involves removing shoes and rolling their feet for a few minutes to soften the 
fascial layer of their feet.  We move on to warm-ups similar to those in other yoga classes - 
stretching, twisting, and movement of the spine. From there, we stand (with shoes back on and 
using the chairs for stability), and do a variety of movements, including balance work.  Coming back 
to the chair, we move a bit more then add in some breathwork. Finally, we conclude with a short 
meditation.   



 

My favorite is watching these students go from raising arms with bent elbows and arms forward of 
their ears; to almost stick straight arms that are, in most cases, alongside their ears. That's a 
challenge in any yoga class. 

Thank you for your support of this population,  

Leslie 



       

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT - JUNE 

Community Health & Wellness Center: 
• Facility construction updates 

o Awaiting new design info for both buildings A and B 
o SiteLogIQ – to be discussed at the June meeting. 

 Estimated construction shutdown at the CHWC is scheduled for September. 
• Before the July Bod Meeting, I will have submitted a grant request to the County for water bottle 

refilling stations at the CHWC. Looking to have three stations: one on either side of Bldg. B and 
one inside Bldg A.  

Clinical Care Option – Pending additional info 
• SESAME-Costco telehealth care option. Judith has made contact and we are awaiting additional 

information to launch the portal.  
• I had a meeting with the Palomar Health Medical Group regarding their interest in expanding 

their primary care services and offering an Urgent Care service to the community. I am awaiting 
their proposal. 

Community Partnerships/Grants: 
• Working with the CHWC team to organize with the Fallbrook Land Conservancy Wellness Walks 

out at the preserves.  
• Met with a group of community stakeholders to discuss transportation opportunities and options for 

the area. The Vallecitos and Fallbrook High School Districts and Palomar College – Fallbrook 
campus are extremely interested. Other partners in the conversation included the Senior Center, 
Foundation for Senior Care, Boys & Girls Club, FACT San Diego, NC Fire, and the Chamber of 
Commerce. The North County Transit District are outlining a pilot Micro-transit shuttle program that 
could resolve many of the concerns we hear in our community. I’m in dialogue with all of these 
partners to ensure that we have input into the process.  

Administrative Projects: 
• Updated FRHD District Policy Manual – this is in the packet for review. I anticipate that we’ll bring 

it forward at the July BoD meeting for adoption.  
• Updated Employee Handbook: Judith and I are updating the handbook to cover new HR concerns. 

This will also include policies for employee driving of District vehicles, email and social media 
polices, and several other policies that get us in compliance with many HR best practices. Both 
Judith and I are doing some intensive HR trainings this and next month to ensure we are fully up to 
date. We’ll bring the changes to Jeff and then back to the Board for approval, likely in August.  

• Judith and I are working with Jeff, consultants at CSDA and CalPERS to better understand the 
District’s current contract for employee health benefits. Our current contract was written in 2000 
and has vague language and terms that will need to be updated. Additionally, we are 
researching better employee retirement plans. We have a Simple IRA plan in place now, but it is 
extremely limited and may not serve a younger workforce.   

• We have already started preliminary work with our auditors for the upcoming year. Looking 
forward to another clean and smooth process working with Nigro & Nigro. 



138 S. Brandon Road, Fallbrook, CA  92028  O: 760.731.9187 
www.fallbrookhealth.org  F: 760.731.9131 

Associations: 
ACHD – Annual meeting will be held in Sacramento from Sept 25-27 
• We have applied to the ACHD Annual meeting to present about the Lifestyle Change program – 

we’ll keep you posted. I also applied for District of the year for this program. 
CSDA – Annual meeting will be held in Indian Wells from Sept 9-12 
• Always great training on best practices 



  

 

1651 Response Road, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

ALLOWANCE EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION (AEA)  AEA # 1 
 
Fallbrook Regional Health District  
4217 Energy Services Master Agreement 
Original Contract Effective Date:  1/10/2024  
Work Order #1 Effective Date:    1/10/2024 
Allowance Expenditure Authorization No.  #1  
 
This Allowance Expenditure Authorization ("AEA”), made by and between Fallbrook 
Regional Health District ("Owner") and SitelogIQ, Inc. ("Contractor") mutually agree to the 
following expenditure of previously agreed upon allowance in the above referenced 
Original Contract and Work Orders between the parties (collectively, the "Agreement"): 
 
AEA #1 provides for the expenditure of $203,477.00 from the $250,000.00 allowance for the 
restoration of the Wellness Center parking lot as per Section 5.0 of the Agreement ; the full 
scope of work for the aforementioned allowance is as follows:  
 
Contractor will furnish the labor, materials, and equipment necessary to complete the 
following: 
 

1. Pulverize, grade, and pave approx. (23,500) SF of existing asphalt with (3)” approx. 
compacted thickness. 

2. Install approx. (700) LF of machine formed asphalt berm with an approx. (8)” 
height. 

3. Install approx. 1,200 SF of asphalt with (3)” approx. compacted thickness. 
4. Restripe new layout using 1 coat of water-based, state-approved paint. 

a. Furnish and install (1) ADA parking sign/post and (1) van accessible sign on 
existing post. 

b. Furnish and install (21) 4’ concrete wheel stops. 
5. Furnish and install seal coat over (24,700) SF.  To be done a minimum of 30 days 

after asphalt installation. 
6. Restripe using (1) coat of water-based, state-approved paint.  Stripe (225) LF of 8” 

curb. 
 
The above Scope of Work excludes the following: 

• Traffic control permits 
• Any items not specified in this Scope of Work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

 

1651 Response Road, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

Scope Map 
 

 
 
 
   

 
Project Allowance Summary 
 
Allowance Description with Work Order 
Number 

Contractual 
Allowance 

Amount 

Authorized 
Allowance 

Expenditures 

Remaining 
Allowance 

Amount 
Work Order #1: Wellness Center Parking 
Lot Restoration. 

$250,000.00 $203,477.00 $46,523.00 

Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 
Work Order #:  $ $ $ 

 



  

 

1651 Response Road, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

All other terms, conditions, and provisions provided in the Agreement, including any 
previous change orders and AEAs remain in full force and effect.  
 
The effective date of this AEA shall be the date upon which the AEA is executed by both 
Owner and Contractor.  
 
 
 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
Fallbrook Regional Health District  SitelogIQ, Inc. 
     
Signature:   Signature:  
     
Print Name: Rachel Mason  Print Name: Jeff Dennis 
     
Title: Chief Executive Officer  Title: Vice President, Operations 
     
Date: 5/30/2024  Date: 5/30/2024 

 



                                                      
 

 

1651 Response Road, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

AGREEMENT CHANGE ORDER  #1 
 
Agreement:  Fallbrook Regional Health District 
  FACILITY SOLUTIONS AGREEMENT 
  Original Contract Effective Date:  1/10/2024  
  Work Order Effective Date:    1/10/2024 
 
Agreement Change Order No. #1:  
 
This Agreement Change Order, made by and between Fallbrook Regional Health District 
("Owner") and SitelogIQ, Inc. ("Contractor") mutually agree to the following changes in the 
above referenced Original Contract and Work Order between the parties (collectively, the 
"Agreement"): 
 
Change Order #1 provides the following changes to the Agreement: 

Change Order: 

Wellness Center ADA Improvements:  
1. Grade and pave accessible parking stall and accessible path of travel, per approved 

architectural plans. 
2. Restripe using (1) coat of water-based, state-approved paint.  $36,037.00 

 
Administrative Office ADA Improvements:  

1. Remove and replace existing concrete ADA service ramp. 
2. Remove and replace approx. 1,780 SF of asphalt to a depth of (4)” in (2) areas for 

accessible parking stalls and accessible path of travel. 
3. Furnish and install seal coat over approx. (6,800)SF. 
4. Restripe using (1) coat of water-based, state-approved paint.  $68,214.00 

 
 Time extension to project: 2 weeks 
 The new date of substantial completion shall be 12/09/2024.  

 

The original Agreement sum:  $ 1,313,109.00 

The net change by previous approved change orders:  $ 0 

The Agreement sum prior to this Agreement Change Order: $ 1,313,109.00 

The Agreement sum will be increased by this Agreement  
Change Order in the amount of:  $ 104,251.00 

The new Agreement sum, including this Agreement Change Order, will be:  $ 1,417,360.00 
 
(Notice to proceed must be provided by 6/14/2024 to finalize permitting. 



                                                      
 

 

1651 Response Road, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

 
All other terms, conditions, and provisions provided in the Contract, including any 
previous change orders, remain in full force and effect.  
 
The effective date of this Agreement Change Order shall be the date upon which the 
Agreement Change Order is executed by both Owner and Contractor.  
 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
Fallbrook Regional Health District  SitelogIQ, Inc. 
     
Signature:   Signature:  
     
Print Name: Rachel Mason  Print Name: Lesley Soekland 
     
Title: Chief Executive Officer  Title: Director of Operations 
     
Date: 5/31/2024  Date: 5/31/2024 

 

 





FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 1 of 8 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

 
This Agreement is entered into by the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

(“DISTRICT”), a California health care district organized and operating pursuant to Health 

and Safety Code section 32000 et seq., and North County Fire Protection District 

(“RECIPIENT”), and is effective upon execution by the parties. 
1. Grant 
 

As a result of the significant impacts and accumulated effects of the 2015 
hospital closure, and the change in the way NCFPD now delivers Emergency 
Medical Services, NCFPD has approached FRHD for ongoing financial support in 
order to assure high quality EMS services to residents. Such that, NCFPD 
maintains a fleet of seven ambulances, each with a lifespan of six years. 
Assuring four frontline ambulances and three reserve ambulances being 
available at all times requires the purchase of one new ambulance each year.  
Thus, financial assistance from FRHD is necessary to ensure NCFPD can 
continue and enhance the quality of service to our community that they want and 
deserve. 

 
Amount:  NCFPD would like the FRHD to participate in a cost share for the 
replacement of one ambulance each fiscal year; for the term of the current Joint 
Powers Agreement.  Total cost of an ambulance varies each year; thus, FRHD has 
committed to cover up to $200,000 per fiscal year for ambulance purchases and 
refurbushment.  This cost can vary slightly, in either direction, based on manufacture 
pricing and any equipment needs at the time of purchase. It is always the intent of 
NCFPD to be as fiscally responsible as possible with all apparatus replacement. 
 

 
2. Term of Agreement 
 

The term of this agreement is from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2026, subject 
however, to earlier termination as provided herein. 

 
3. Legal Responsibility/Liability 
 

In authorizing execution of this agreement, the governing body of RECIPIENT 
accepts legal responsibility to ensure that the funds provided by DISTRICT are 
allocated for the purpose or purposes for which the grant was intended, as outlined 
in RECIPIENT’S Request for Proposal/Grant Application.  RECIPIENT agrees to be 
knowledgeable of the requirements of this agreement and responsible for 
compliance with its terms.  In no event shall DISTRICT be legally responsible or 
liable for RECIPIENT's performance or failure to perform under the terms of the 
grant or this agreement. 
 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 2 of 8 

 
4. Reduction of Awarded Funds 
 

DISTRICT may reduce, suspend, or terminate the payment or amount of the grant if 
the RECIPIENT is not meeting the objectives of the grant as determined in the sole 
discretion of DISTRICT. RECIPIENT understands and agrees that RECIPIENT’s 
failure to comply with its obligations under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation paragraphs 11, 16, and 18 herein, may result in RECIPIENT’s 
disqualification from participation in subsequent grant cycles with the DISITRICT. 
RECIPIENT hereby expressly waives any and all claims against DISTRICT for 
damages arising from the termination, suspension, or reduction of the funds 
provided by DISTRICT.  

 
5. Other Funding Sources 

 
RECIPIENT shall make available, as requested by DISTRICT, information regarding 
other funding sources for the programs or services provided by RECIPIENT. 

 
6. Amended Program Work Plan 
 

RECIPIENT shall submit to the DISTRICT with the signed grant agreement, an 
amended work plan if original grant request is not fully funded.   

 
7. Fund Use Description 
 

RECIPIENT shall have available for prospective participants or others a description 
detailing the nature of the program or service(s) that are being funded by DISTRICT. 
 This written program description may be a separate document or incorporated in 
the overall program materials developed by the RECIPIENT.  Upon request, 
RECIPIENT shall provide a copy of the program or service(s) description to 
DISTRICT. 

 
8. Independent Contractor Status 
 

The relationship between DISTRICT and RECIPIENT, and the agents, employees, 
and subcontractors of RECIPIENT, in the performance of this agreement shall be 
one of independent contractors, and no agent, employee, or subcontractor of 
RECIPIENT shall be deemed an officer, employee, or agent of DISTRICT. 

 
9. Use of Funds for Lobbying or Political Purposes 
 

RECIPIENT is prohibited from using funds provided by DISTRICT for any political 
campaign or to support attempts to influence legislation by any governmental body. 

 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 3 of 8 

10. Federal, State, Local Laws, Regulations, and Organizational Documents 
 

RECIPIENT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 
including but not limited to labor laws, occupational and general safety laws, and 
licensing laws.  All licenses, permits, notices, and certificates as are required to be 
maintained by RECIPIENT shall be in effect throughout the term of this agreement.  
RECIPIENT shall notify DISTRICT immediately if any required licenses or permits 
are canceled, suspended, or otherwise ineffective. 

 
11. Monitoring/Evaluation 
 

RECIPIENT shall cooperate in efforts undertaken by DISTRICT to evaluate the 
effectiveness and use of the grant funds.  RECIPIENT shall participate in and 
comply with all on-site evaluation and grant monitoring procedures, including 
interviews with RECIPIENT’s staff.   RECIPIENT, at the request of the DISTRICT, 
shall also provide a written and/or oral status report to DISTRICT in a format 
provided and schedule defined by DISTRICT. 

Report and Payment Schedule is appended hereto as “Exhibit 1”. 
 

 
12. Changes or Modifications to the Use of DISTRICT Grant Funds 
 

RECIPIENT shall submit to DISTRICT, in writing, any requests for revisions prior to 
implementation of any proposed changes in the use of DISTRICT grant funds.  The 
DISTRICT must receive such requests at least thirty (30) days prior to the date that 
requested changes are to be implemented. 

 
13. Conflict of Interest/Self Dealing 
 

RECIPIENT and RECIPIENT's officers and employees shall not have a financial 
interest or acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, in any business entity or 
source of income that could be financially affected by, or otherwise conflict in any 
manner or degree with, the performance of services required under this agreement. 
 

14. Authorization and License to Use Commerical Image In Promotional Materials 
 

RECIPIENT understands that DISTRICT may wish to utilize RECIPIENT’S name 
and logo, along with any photographic or video images of RECIPIENT’S premises,  
operations and activities in promotional materials designed to publicize the 
DISTRICT’S mission and service to the community served by the DISTRICT.  
RECIPIENT hereby grants the DISTRICT permission and license to utilize 
RECIPIENT’S name, logo, commercial image, along with any photographs, 
videotape footage, or other graphic illustrations of RECIPIENT’S premises, 
operations, and activities, as further consideration for receipt of the Grant Funds. 

  
 
 
 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 4 of 8 

15. Indemnify and Hold Harmless 
 

RECIPIENT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless DISTRICT and its 
officers, agents, employees, and servants from any and all claims and losses 
accruing or resulting to any and all employees, contractors, subcontractors, 
laborers, and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work, 
services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this 
agreement and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any 
person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by RECIPIENT in the 
performance of this agreement.    

 
16. Budget and Payment Schedule 
 

Unless RECIPIENT and DISTRICT agree upon alternative arrangements, grant 
funds shall be allocated quarterly upon District’s receipt of an invoice with 
appropriate back-up documentation. In the event that RECIPIENT fails to provide 
appropriate invoice and back-up documentation in a timely manner, RECIPIENT 
may be subject to discontinuance of funding or, in instance of full payment at onset 
of grant year, return of balance of funds to DISTRICT. 
 

17. Fiscal/Accounting Principles 
 

RECIPIENT shall maintain an accounting system that accurately reflects and 
documents all fiscal transactions for which grant funds are used.   

 
18. Documentation of Revenues and Expenses 
 

RECIPIENT shall maintain full and complete documentation of all revenue and 
expenses (including subcontracted, overhead, and indirect expenses) associated 
with use of the grant funds covered by this agreement. During the term of this 
agreement and thereafter, DISTRICT or its authorized representative(s) shall have 
the right to review all RECIPIENT financial records including records related to the 
use of the grant funds. 

 
19. Reports and Record Retention 
 

All records of RECIPIENT pertaining to the use of grant funds shall be maintained at 
RECIPIENT's main local office for at least five (5) years following the year in which 
funds were granted. 

 
20. Governing Law 
 

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

 
21. Assignment or Transfer 
 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 5 of 8 

RECIPIENT may not assign or transfer any interest in this agreement or entitlement 
to grant funds without the written consent of District. 

 
22. Entire Agreement, Amendment 
 

This agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 
agreements not contained herein. This agreement may only be amended or 
modified by a writing signed by both parties. 

 
23. Notices 
 

Any notice required or permitted thereunder may be given by a party to the other 
party at the address set forth in the signature block of this agreement.  Either party 
may change its address for purposes of notice by complying with the requirements 
of this section. 
 
 

 
-  

- Continued on next page   -



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 6 of 8 

24. Signatories 
 
 The persons executing this agreement on behalf of the RECIPIENT have been 

designated by the governing body or fiscal agent of the RECIPIENT as the official 
signatory of this agreement and all related documents.  At least one of these 
persons is a member of the RECIPIENT's governing board. 

 
(1) Keith McReynolds    (2) Ross Pike        

           Fire Chief/CEO                                               Board President                   
        
330 S. Main Avenue    330 S. Main Avenue 
Fallbrook, CA 92028      Fallbrook, CA 92028 
                 
760-731-9187     760-723-2005 

 
 ________________________   ________________________ 

Signature      Signature 
 
 __________________    ________________ 

Date       Date   
 
 
 
 
25. Authorized Signatory for the Fallbrook Regional Health District: 
  
 
 
 _____________________________  ________________ 
        Date 
 WILLIAM “BILL” LEACH, CHAIR 

Fallbrook Regional Health District    
138 S. Brandon Road    
Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Telephone:  760-731-9187     
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 7 of 8 

 
EXHIBIT  1 

 
REPORT AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
FRHD WILL PROVIDE FUNDS WITHIN 30 DAYS OF NOTICE OF NCFPD’S 

INTENT TO PURCHASE AN AMBULANCE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT                     Agreement #: 2024-2 
 

FRHD GRANT YEAR 2024.2026   Page 8 of 8 

EXHIBIT  2 
 

PAPER AND DIGITIZED COPY OF GRANT APPLICATION IS MAINTAINED IN 
FRHD FILES WITH COPY OF FULLY EXECUTED AGREEMENT. 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FALLBROOK 
REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT APPROVING THE STATEMENT OF 

INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors may approve and adopt a Statement of 
Investment Policy; and  

WHEREAS, the annual Statement of Investment Policy must be reviewed and 
adopted at a public meeting, the Investment Policy of the Fallbrook Regional Health 
District shall be as follows: 

Section 1 - General Provisions and Objectives 

Fallbrook Regional Health District (“District”) is a local agency organized and 
existing pursuant to the California Healthcare District Law (Health & Safety Code Sections 
32000, et seq.).  

  
District funds not required for immediate expenditure will be invested in compliance 

with this policy and the provisions of California Government Code Sections 53600, et seq.  
Criteria for selecting investments and the absolute order of priority are safety, liquidity, 
and yield.  Investments will be made in a range of instruments and maturity dates to 
ensure diversification and liquidity of assets in an emergency or when a large cash outlay 
is necessary.  In accordance with California Government Code Section 53607, the 
authority to invest or reinvest the funds of the District is retained by the Board, with the 
advice of the Finance Committee. 

Section 2 – Prudent Investor Standard 

All participants in the investment process shall recognize that the investment 
portfolio is subject to the prudent investor standard as set forth in California Government 
Code Section 53600.3 and to public review and evaluation and shall seek to act 
responsibly as fiduciaries of the public trust.  Investments shall be made with the exercise 
of that degree of judgment and care under circumstances then prevailing which persons 
of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, 
not for speculation but for investment, considering the preservation of capital, the cash 
flow needs of the District as well as the income to be derived.  In a diversified portfolio, 
occasional measured losses may be inevitable and must be considered within the context 
of the overall portfolio’s return and the cash flow requirements of the District. 

Section 3 – Credit Risk 

A. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter-party to an investment 
will not fulfill its obligation.  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the 
magnitude of a District’s investment in a single issuer.  All participants in the investment 
process shall consider aversion to concentration of credit risk by: 



Resolution No.  
June 3, 2024 
Page 2  
 

1. Limiting investment purchases to those types and amounts permissible by 
California Government Code § 53601 and Section 6 of this Resolution;  

2. Investing no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the portfolio with one 
issuer, except as noted in §6 below; and 

3. If pursuing a rated investment, investing only in investments with an AA+/A1 
or better rating from Standard and Poor’s Corporation and AA1/P2 or better 
from Moody’s Investors Service Inc. at the time of purchase. 

B. Custodial credit risk is the risk that the District will not be able to recover 
deposits or the value an investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party.  All participants in the investment process shall consider aversion to 
custodial credit risk by: 

 
 1. Investing no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the portfolio with one 

financial institution, with the exception of a Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP), the US Treasury, and funds advanced or in trustee accounts 
for project construction; and  

 
 2. If pursuing a deposit, ensuring that all deposits are fully collateralized as 

required by California Government Code Section 53652, or are insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or National Credit Union 
Administration, and the "Contract for Deposit of Monies" will indicate the 
type and amount of collateral. 

Section 4 – Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment.  All participants in the investment process shall consider 
aversion to interest rate risk by limiting the term remaining to maturity on purchased 
investments to five years, unless a longer term is permissible within the California 
Government Code and specifically approved by the Board prior to purchase.   

Section 5 - Ethics and Conflict of Interest. 

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as 
custodians of the public trust.  All officials, officers, and employees involved in the 
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with 
proper execution of the investment program or which could impair his/her ability to make 
impartial investment recommendations and decisions.  All officials, officers, and 
employees involved in the investment process shall adhere to the District’s Conflict of 
Interest Code, which is updated biennially by the Board.   



Resolution No.  
June 3, 2024 
Page 3  
 

Section 6 – Permissible Investments 

 The permissible investments are as stated in the California Government 
Code 53600 et seq. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 53601.1, no 
investment will be made in financial futures or financial option contracts without the prior 
approval of the Board of Directors.  Investments permitted by the California Government 
Code, but not by this policy, will be made only with prior approval of the Board of Directors.  

A thorough investigation of any pool or fund is required prior to investing, and on a 
continual basis.  The purpose of this investigation is to determine the suitability of a pool 
or fund and evaluate the risk of placing funds with that pool or fund.  The investigation 
shall, at a minimum, obtain the following information: 

A description of interest calculations and how it is distributed, and how gains and 
losses are distributed; 

 
A description of who may invest in the program, how often, what size deposits and 
withdrawals are permitted; 

 
A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings; 

 
A description of the pool/fund reserves or retained earnings, or whether all income 
after expenses is distributed to participants; and 

 
A fee schedule which discloses when and how fees are assessed. 

§7 – Reporting and Miscellaneous Provisions 

Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 53646(b) and 53646(d), a 
monthly report shall be submitted to the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days following 
the end of the month covered by the report for review.  The report shall include the type 
of investment, issuer, purchase and maturity dates, rate of interest, dollar amount 
invested, fund, current market value, and percentage of portfolio.  The report shall also 
state compliance of the portfolio to the statement of the investment policy, or the manner 
in which the portfolio is not in compliance.  The report shall include a statement regarding 
the ability of the District to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six (6) months.  

The Finance Committee shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls 
to be examined and monitored by the District’s independent auditor.  The investment 
policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board to ensure its consistency with applicable 
state law.  

  



Resolution No.  
June 3, 2024 
Page 4  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook 
Regional Health District as follows: 

The Annual Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 is hereby 
approved, and the Finance Committee directed to follow this Statement of Investment 
Policy in investing funds of the District. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Regional 
Health District at a regular meeting held on this 12th day of June  2024, by the following 
roll call vote: 

 AYES: ________________________________________________ 

 NOES: ________________________________________________ 

 ABSTAIN: ________________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: ________________________________________________ 

 
______________________________ 

      William Leach, Chair 
      Board of Directors 
      Fallbrook Regional Health District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Mike Stanicek, Secretary 
Board of Directors 
Fallbrook Regional Health District 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 463 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FALLBROOK 
REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT APPROVING THE STATEMENT OF 

INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors may approve and adopt a Statement of 
Investment Policy; and  

WHEREAS, the annual Statement of Investment Policy must be reviewed and 
adopted at a public meeting, the Investment Policy of the Fallbrook Regional Health 
District shall be as follows: 

Section 1 - General Provisions and Objectives 

Fallbrook Regional Health District (“District”) is a local agency organized and 
existing pursuant to the California Healthcare District Law (Health & Safety Code Sections 
32000, et seq.).  

  
District funds not required for immediate expenditure will be invested in compliance 

with this policy and the provisions of California Government Code Sections 53600, et seq.  
Criteria for selecting investments and the absolute order of priority are safety, liquidity, 
and yield.  Investments will be made in a range of instruments and maturity dates to 
ensure diversification and liquidity of assets in an emergency or when a large cash outlay 
is necessary.  In accordance with California Government Code Section 53607, the 
authority to invest or reinvest the funds of the District is retained by the Board, with the 
advice of the Finance Committee. 

Section 2 – Prudent Investor Standard 

All participants in the investment process shall recognize that the investment 
portfolio is subject to the prudent investor standard as set forth in California Government 
Code Section 53600.3 and to public review and evaluation and shall seek to act 
responsibly as fiduciaries of the public trust.  Investments shall be made with the exercise 
of that degree of judgment and care under circumstances then prevailing which persons 
of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, 
not for speculation but for investment, considering the preservation of capital, the cash 
flow needs of the District as well as the income to be derived.  In a diversified portfolio, 
occasional measured losses may be inevitable and must be considered within the context 
of the overall portfolio’s return and the cash flow requirements of the District. 

Section 3 – Credit Risk 

A. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter-party to an investment 
will not fulfill its obligation.  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the 
magnitude of a District’s investment in a single issuer.  All participants in the investment 
process shall consider aversion to concentration of credit risk by: 



Resolution No. 463 
June 3, 2024 
Page 2  
 

1. Limiting investment purchases to those types and amounts permissible by 
California Government Code § 53601 and Section 6 of this Resolution;  

2. Investing no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the portfolio with one 
issuer, except as noted in §6 below; and 

3. If pursuing a rated investment, investing only in investments with an AA+/A1 
or better rating from Standard and Poor’s Corporation and AA1/P2 or better 
from Moody’s Investors Service Inc. at the time of purchase. 

B. Custodial credit risk is the risk that the District will not be able to recover 
deposits or the value an investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party.  All participants in the investment process shall consider aversion to 
custodial credit risk by: 

 
 1. Investing no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the portfolio with one 

financial institution, with the exception of a Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP), the US Treasury, and funds advanced or in trustee accounts 
for project construction; and  

 
 2. If pursuing a deposit, ensuring that all deposits are fully collateralized as 

required by California Government Code Section 53652, or are insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or National Credit Union 
Administration, and the "Contract for Deposit of Monies" will indicate the 
type and amount of collateral. 

Section 4 – Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment.  All participants in the investment process shall consider 
aversion to interest rate risk by limiting the term remaining to maturity on purchased 
investments to five years, unless a longer term is permissible within the California 
Government Code and specifically approved by the Board prior to purchase.   

Section 5 - Ethics and Conflict of Interest. 

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as 
custodians of the public trust.  All officials, officers, and employees involved in the 
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with 
proper execution of the investment program or which could impair his/her ability to make 
impartial investment recommendations and decisions.  All officials, officers, and 
employees involved in the investment process shall adhere to the District’s Conflict of 
Interest Code, which is updated biennially by the Board.   



Resolution No. 463 
June 3, 2024 
Page 3  
 

Section 6 – Permissible Investments 

 The permissible investments are as stated in the California Government 
Code 53600 et seq. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 53601.1, no 
investment will be made in financial futures or financial option contracts without the prior 
approval of the Board of Directors.  Investments permitted by the California Government 
Code, but not by this policy, will be made only with prior approval of the Board of Directors.  

A thorough investigation of any pool or fund is required prior to investing, and on a 
continual basis.  The purpose of this investigation is to determine the suitability of a pool 
or fund and evaluate the risk of placing funds with that pool or fund.  The investigation 
shall, at a minimum, obtain the following information: 

A description of interest calculations and how it is distributed, and how gains and 
losses are distributed; 

 
A description of who may invest in the program, how often, what size deposits and 
withdrawals are permitted; 

 
A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings; 

 
A description of the pool/fund reserves or retained earnings, or whether all income 
after expenses is distributed to participants; and 

 
A fee schedule which discloses when and how fees are assessed. 

§7 – Reporting and Miscellaneous Provisions 

Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 53646(b) and 53646(d), a 
monthly report shall be submitted to the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days following 
the end of the month covered by the report for review.  The report shall include the type 
of investment, issuer, purchase and maturity dates, rate of interest, dollar amount 
invested, fund, current market value, and percentage of portfolio.  The report shall also 
state compliance of the portfolio to the statement of the investment policy, or the manner 
in which the portfolio is not in compliance.  The report shall include a statement regarding 
the ability of the District to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six (6) months.  

The Finance Committee shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls 
to be examined and monitored by the District’s independent auditor.  The investment 
policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board to ensure its consistency with applicable 
state law.  

  



Resolution No. 463 
June 3, 2024 
Page 4  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook 
Regional Health District as follows: 

The Annual Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 is hereby 
approved, and the Finance Committee directed to follow this Statement of Investment 
Policy in investing funds of the District. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Regional 
Health District at a regular meeting held on this 12th day of June  2024, by the following 
roll call vote: 

 AYES: ________________________________________________ 

 NOES: ________________________________________________ 

 ABSTAIN: ________________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: ________________________________________________ 

 
______________________________ 

      William Leach, Chair 
      Board of Directors 
      Fallbrook Regional Health District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Mike Stanicek, Secretary 
Board of Directors 
Fallbrook Regional Health District 
 



 
RE-ELECT 

JO MACKENZIE 
PROVEN EXPERIENCE LEADING 

SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 • Dedicated 

  • Fiscally Responsible 

  • Committed to Special Districts 

 

 
It has been a privilege and honor to serve on the CSDA Board of Directors (Board) representing the 
Southern Network.  Serving on the Board requires a commitment of time; I am in Sacramento at least 
twice a month for CSDA meetings.  I have served as President, Vice President and Treasurer, and served 
as a Chair and/or member of the various committees.  In 2010 and 2011, respectively, I was recognized 
as CSDA’s Legislative Advocate of the Year and by PublicCEO as Special District Official of the Year. 
 
During my tenure on the CSDA Board, I have formed working relationships throughout the Network and 
State that have given me an insight regarding the needs of special districts. Based on these insights and 
input from other CSDA directors, CSDA has worked to provide webinars at no cost to its members, 
begun offering the leadership academy three times a year and on-line, and the SDLF Board eliminated 
budget limits for scholarships. I serve on the CSDA and SDLF Boards, and I am proud of the 
collaboration that allows all special districts to take advantage of CSDA’s programs. 

 
During my term, I have been committed to continue building on the present foundation of CSDA’s 
educational programs, state and federal legislative advocacy, and public outreach.  CSDA is now the “voice 
of Special Districts”, “the third leg of local government”, and the ‘go-to’ association for legislative issues. 

 
My proven leadership and public service experience, commitment to fiscal responsibility, and 
comprehensive LAFCO and special district knowledge make me the most qualified candidate to represent 
the Southern Network. 

 
I have a true passion for and proven experience in leading Special Districts. I would be honored to 
continue serving on the CSDA Board as your Southern Network Director. 
 
I am asking for your Vote.   
 
 

ELECTRONIC VOTING ENDS JULY 26 AT 5:00 P.M. 
 

50+ CSDA EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES ARE LISTED ON  
CSDA’S HOME PAGE 



A public agency serving the city of Vista and portions of San Marcos, Escondido, Oceanside and San Diego County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 5, 2024 
 
 
 
Re: Jo MacKenzie for CSDA Board of Directors, Southern Network, Seat A  
 
Dear Board President: 
 
On February 20, 2024, the Vista Irrigation District (VID) Board nominated Jo MacKenzie to the California 
Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors for the Southern Network, Seat A. As President of the 
Board, I’m requesting that your Board cast its vote for Jo MacKenzie, CSDA Board of Directors.  Electronic 
ballot voting begins on June 10, 2024.    
 
Jo’s enthusiasm, commitment, and comprehensive knowledge of special districts have brought a high level of 
experience to the CSDA Board of Directors. Jo believes it is important that CSDA continue to be the voice of all 
special districts and build on the present foundation of legislative advocacy, educational programs, and public 
outreach.   
 
Currently serving on the CSDA Board of Directors (Past President, 2011), Jo serves on the CSDA Legislative 
Committee; she served as the Committee Chair from 2006-2010 and in 2012 and was named Legislative 
Advocate of the Year in 2010.  Jo currently serves as President of the CSDA Finance Corporation, and Vice 
President of the Special District Leadership Foundation.  She also serves on the CSDA Member Services 
Committee and is very active with the San Diego Chapter of CSDA, serving as its President 1998-2000.  
 
Jo was elected to the VID Board of Directors in 1992 and has since served as President nine times. She is currently a 
Commissioner on the San Diego Local Agencies Formation Commission (LAFCO) and served as Chair in 2019-2020; 
Jo has continuously served in various capacities on LAFCO since 1994.  She has also served on the California 
Association LAFCO Board of Directors. Jo is a past Board Director for the Association of California Water Agencies 
and currently serves on its Membership and Local Government committees.  
 
Jo is active in her local community, having served on the City of San Marcos Planning Commission, Traffic/Safety 
Commission, Budget Review Committee and Affordable Housing Task Force.  She has also been active in the San 
Marcos Chamber of Commerce for over 30 years, serving as a Board Member and a Life Member Ambassador.    
 
Jo is extremely active and engaged in all aspects of California special districts and her wealth of experience makes 
her the obvious choice for Southern Network, Seat A. I urge your Board to vote for Jo MacKenzie to continue her 
service as Seat A Director for the Southern Network.  Thank you for your support! 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Richard L. Vásquez 
President, Board of Directors 

1391 Engineer Street  Vista, California 92081-8840 
Phone (760) 597-3100   Fax:  (760) 598-8757 

www.vidwater.org 

Board of Directors 
Richard L. Vásquez, President, Division 2 

 

Marty Miller, Division 1 
 

Peter Kuchinsky II., Division 3 
 

Patrick H. Sanchez, Division 4 
 

Jo MacKenzie, Division 5 
 

Administrative Staff 
Brett L. Hodgkiss 

General Manager 

Ramae A. Ogilvie 
Board Secretary 

Elizabeth A. Mitchell 
General Counsel 



FY23-24 YOUTH FITNESS GRANTS 
 

FALLBROOK BAND BOOSTERS INC.  
 
 
 
 

 





 



Tuesday, May 21, 2024

Anticipated Acknowledgment
Please describe how the Fallbrook Regional Health District’s investment in this program was 
acknowledged.   This includes all print and electronic materials, press releases, website 
references, and any other form of written and verbal publicity that relates to the funded 
program.

Organization Name Legal Name

Fallbrook Band Boosters

DBA (if Applicable)

N/A

Contact Information Contact Name

Amy Otto

Title

Band Booster Treasurer

Primary Contact Phone

910-467-9895

Email Address

fhswarriorsband@gmail.com

Financial Documents - P&L and 
Balance Sheet PDF Statement of Activities - Shee….pdf

Total number of residents that directly 
participated from this program.

100

Target Population - Age

Percent of program participants Estimated number of participants

Children (infants to 12)

Young Adults (13-17) 90

Adults (18-60) 10

1

https://www.jotform.com/uploads/Rachel_Mason_rmason/241336978562164/5921364111498339452/Statement%20of%20Activities%20-%20Sheet1.pdf


Target Population - Gender

Percent of program participants

Female 30

Male 70

Non-binary

Unknown*

Please tell us how the funding was used and how that supported youth fitness.
We were honored to be one of the very first recipients of a Fallbrook Youth Fitness Grant.   It greatly helped 
to support our Winter Drumline and Winter Guard competition season. We were able to purchase a new 
vinyl floor ($2222.44) and uniform items, red ties ($242.44) for FHS Drumline.  As for FHS winter Guard we 
were able to have 4 metal rolling backdrop props built ($1043.48) and 5 wooden guard rifles ($1570.08). 
These items all helped to enhance the visual performances of both groups resulting in high scores 
throughout the winter competition season. FHS Winter Guard ended the season with 4th place in their 
division and FHS Drumline brought home a 3rd place bronze medal.

Acknowledgment
A post was made in appreciation and acknowledgement to Fallbrook Regional Health on our eternal 
communication app (BAND) for the students and parents to see. Fallbrook Regional Health logo will be 
added to sponsors list our concert program. Final concert of the year May, 30, 2024.

Authorized Signature

2



BONSALL FALLBROOK  
LITTLE LEAGUE 

FY 23/24 YOUTH FITNESS GRANTEE  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Friday, May 24, 2024

Youth Fitness Participant
Parent/Guardian Satisfaction Survey

Survey No. 0008

Did you know that grant funding from 
the Fallbrook Regional Health District 
helped to make this program available 
to your child?

sort of.. I knew there was funding but I wasn't sure from
where

In which Youth Fitness/Sports program was your child involved. 
My eight year old daughter and my eleven year old son both played co-ed baseball with Bonsall Fallbrook 
Little League.

How would you rate your satisfaction 
with your child's Youth Fitness 
program?

Extremely satisfied

How often did your child get to play in 
either practice or an organized game?

Several times a week

How would you rate the amount of 
fitness this program offers for your 
child?

Extremely satisfied

What's your satisfaction with the 
program's provision of a safe 
environment for your child to play and 
develop?

Extremely satisfied

1



Do you think the program offered 
enough equipment for your child?

Yes

How likely would you be to 
recommend this program to a friend 
or family member?

Extremely likely

Did you feel like the coaches were 
adequately trained and equipped to 
handle any first aid needs during 
practices or games?

Yes

How would you rate the coaches' 
positive supporters of their athletes?

Extremely positive

Is there anything else you would like us to know about the program or coaches?
I regularly share information to anyone with children that may be interested about the baseball program 
provided by Bonsall Fallbrook Little League.

How would you rate your child's 
interest in fitness or sports from 1 to 
10?

10 / 10

Did involvement in this program help 
your child in other areas of life (i.e. 
school, socially, mental attitude, etc.)

Yes

What is one thing you wish could change about youth fitness/sports in general?
Additional help with any and all funding for any child that may be interested in playing baseball with BFLL.

Do you want to submit this survey 
anonymously?

No

2



Parent's Name Rodolfo Reyna III

Your child's grade/level 2nd and 5th

Email bombnfrm7142619@yahoo.com

3



Friday, May 24, 2024

Youth Fitness Participant
Parent/Guardian Satisfaction Survey

Survey No. 0004

Did you know that grant funding from 
the Fallbrook Regional Health District 
helped to make this program available 
to your child?

Yes

In which Youth Fitness/Sports program was your child involved. 
Bonsall Fallbrook Little League Baseball

How would you rate your satisfaction 
with your child's Youth Fitness 
program?

Extremely satisfied

How often did your child get to play in 
either practice or an organized game?

Several times a week

How would you rate the amount of 
fitness this program offers for your 
child?

Extremely satisfied

What's your satisfaction with the 
program's provision of a safe 
environment for your child to play and 
develop?

Extremely satisfied

1



Do you think the program offered 
enough equipment for your child?

Yes

How likely would you be to 
recommend this program to a friend 
or family member?

Extremely likely

Did you feel like the coaches were 
adequately trained and equipped to 
handle any first aid needs during 
practices or games?

Yes

How would you rate the coaches' 
positive supporters of their athletes?

Extremely positive

Is there anything else you would like us to know about the program or coaches?
The whole little league board is amazing and supportive. Same with the coaches. My son has played in 
this league since he was 6, he's almost 11 now.  It's been a great experience.

How would you rate your child's 
interest in fitness or sports from 1 to 
10?

8 / 10

Did involvement in this program help 
your child in other areas of life (i.e. 
school, socially, mental attitude, etc.)

Yes

What is one thing you wish could change about youth fitness/sports in general?
Letting the kids have fun. Some sports leagues are too serious, and some coaches and parents yell at their 
kids when they aren't doing things well or get distracted.  
But I am very happy with BFLL, because everyone is supportive and helpful, and allow the kids to have fun, 
while also teaching them important skills. 

2



Do you want to submit this survey 
anonymously?

No

Parent's Name Ashley Briggs

Your child's grade/level 5

Email greengrl26@gmail.com

3



 

 

 

 
 

District Policy Manual 
June 2024  



 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Policy # Policy Title Approval 
Date 

PROC-1 Purpose of the Policy Manual _/_/24 

 
POLICIES # BOD - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Policy # Policy Title Approval 
Date 

BOD-01 Board Member Election and Appointment and Duties of 
Officers 

_/__/24 

BOD-02 Responsibilities & Duties of Committees _/__/24 

BOD-03 Attendance at Meetings _/__/24 

BOD-04 Basis of Authority and Relations with Staff and Consultants _/__/24 

BOD-05  Board Vacancies _/__/24 

BOD-06 Board Meeting Agendas and District Calendars _/__/24 

BOD-07 Board Meetings and Teleconferencing _/__/24 

BOD-08 Board Meeting Conduct _/__/24 

BOD-09  Board Actions and Decisions _/__/24 

BOD-10  Board Meeting Minutes _/__/24 

BOD-11  Meeting Compensation Guidelines _/__/24 

BOD-12  Ethics Training and Education Relating to the Workplace _/__/24 

BOD-13 Conflict of Interest Code and Code of Ethics _/__/24 

BOD-14 Evaluation Process of the Chief Executive Officer _/__/24 

BOD-15 Media Relations _/__/24 
BOD-16 Ticket Distribution Policy _/__/24 

BOD-17 Authority of CEO During Emergency Declaration _/__/24 

BOD-18 Employment and Consulting Prohibition for Former 
Directors 

_/__/24 

 

POLICIES # OP -  OPERATIONS 
 

Policy # Policy Title Approval 
Date 

OP-01 Access to Public Records  _/__/24 



OP-02 Records Retention _/__/24 

OP-03 Community Health Contracts/Grant Policy & Procedures _/__/24 

OP-04 Use/Rental of District Facilities _/__/24 

OP-05 Delegating Minor Claims Settlement to CEO _/__/24 

OP-06 Strategic Planning _/__/24 

 
POLICIES # FIN - FINANCIAL 

 
Policy # Policy Title Approval 

Date 
FIN-01 Financial Operations _/__/24 

FIN-02 Financial Internal Controls _/__/24 

FIN-03 Investment Policy _/__/24 

FIN-04 Reserve Policy _/__/24 

FIN-05 Annual Budget  _/__/24 

FIN-06 Credit Card Use/Expense Authorization _/__/24 

FIN-07 Travel and Reimbursement of Expenses _/__/24 

FIN-08 Accounts Payable _/__/24 

FIN-09 Purchasing and Property Control _/__/24 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #: PROC-1 Page 1 of 1 

Title:  Purpose of the Policy Manual 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24 

 
 

 

The District Board of Directors will maintain a Policy Manual consisting of Board Policies (BOD), 
Operational Polices (OP), and Financial Polices (FP).  
 
GUIDELINES: 
 

1. The Policy Manual is a comprehensive listing of the Board’s current policies and 
regulations which have been approved by the Board, with the intent to review every two 
years or as needed.  The Board may update any policy at any time at their discretion.  
The Policy Manual shall serve as a resource for the Board, staff, and members of the 
public in determining the manner in which matters of District business are to be 
conducted. 
 

2. When necessary, policies shall be reviewed by the District Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
and the General Counsel. 
 

3. Adoption of a new policy or the amendment of an existing policy shall be accomplished 
at a meeting of the Board and shall require a majority vote of all Board Members present. 

 
4. If any policy or portion of a policy contained in the Policy Manual conflicts with the rules, 

regulations, or legislation having authority over the District, those rules, regulations, or 
legislation shall prevail.  Where this occurs, the Board of Directors will clarify either the 
rules or policy to assure that they are compatible.



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-01 Page 1 of 2 

Title: BOARD MEMBER ELECTION AND   
 APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF  
 OFFICERS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date:  _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to elect, appoint, and prescribe the duties of Board officers in 
accordance with the District Bylaws as amended. 
 
ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE: 
 
An election shall be held in the District on the Tuesday after the first Monday in November 
in each even-numbered year, at which time a successor shall be chosen to each Director 
whose term shall expire on the first Friday in December at noon following such election.  
The election of Board members shall be by zones within the District and shall be 
consolidated with the statewide general election.  The candidates receiving the highest 
number of votes for the offices to be filled at the election shall be elected thereto.  The 
term of office of each elected Board member shall be four (4) years, or until the Board 
member’s successor is elected and has qualified, except as otherwise provided by law in 
the event of a vacancy. 
 
SWEARING IN OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Newly elected Board Members shall be sworn in by or at the first Board meeting following 
the first Friday in December.  Newly elected or appointed Board members must be sworn 
in prior to performing any official duties. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS: 
 
The officers of the Board shall be chosen by the Board at the regular board meeting on in 
December.  The Board Chair, CEO, or District Counsel will call for nominations for Board 
Chair.  No vote shall be taken until all nominations have been made.  Once all nominations 
are made nominations shall be closed and the vote shall be taken in public.  The process 
continues for the Vice-Chair, and Secretary.  The incoming Chair shall appoint the 
Treasurer who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. 
 
CHAIR: 
 

• The Chair shall hold office until a successor is elected.  The Chair shall be the 
principal officer of the District and Board, and shall preside at all meetings of the 
Board.   

• The Chair shall work with the CEO, Vice-Chair, and General Counsel when 
necessary in planning the agenda. 

• The Chair may make and second motions and vote in the same manner as other 
Board members. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-01 Page 2 of 2 

Title: BOARD MEMBER ELECTION AND   
 APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF  
 OFFICERS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date:  _/__/24  

 
 

 

 
VICE-CHAIR: 
 

• The Vice-Chair shall hold office until a successor is elected.  In absence of the 
Chair the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair. 

 
SECRETARY: 
 

• The Secretary shall hold office until a successor is elected.  The Secretary shall 
provide for the record keeping of all meetings of the Board.  The Secretary shall 
give or cause to be given appropriate notices in accordance with the District Bylaws 
and adopted rules of the Board and shall act as the custodian of District records, 
reports, and the District’s seal.   

 
TREASURER: 
 

• The Treasurer shall be charged with the safekeeping and disbursal of the funds in 
the Treasury of the District.   

 
 
ORIENTATION: 
 
No later than thirty (30) days from being sworn into office, new Directors shall receive an 
orientation from the District General Counsel and Chief Executive Officer regarding the 
Brown Act, prohibitions related to vote trading, the requirement to receive formal ethics 
training, and other laws governing the requirements for ethical conduct on the part of 
public officials and public agencies. 

 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-02 Page 1 of 2 

Title: RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES OF 
         COMMITTEES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date:  _/__/24 

 
 

 

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS: 
 
The Chair shall appoint all Board committee members and committee chairpersons.  One 
member shall be designated the chairperson of the committee.  

 
STANDING COMMITTEES:   

Standing committees shall meet periodically to review reports from the CEO, General Counsel, 
and consultants relating to the particular subject matter of the committee.  Meetings of a standing 
committee may be called by the Chair of the Board or the Chairperson of the Committee.  Each 
committee shall keep minutes of its proceedings and shall report periodically to the Board. 
There shall be the following standing committees: 

• Finance.  This committee shall be responsible for review of budgetary, and financial and 
investment matters related to the District including the annual audit and review of District 
investment and appraisal of market conditions relating to the prudent investment of 
District funds. 
 

• Facilities.  This committee shall be responsible for periodic inspection of District owned 
facilities to ensure compliance with the terms of the lease and for review and 
consideration of real estate matters.  

• Strategic Planning.  This committee monitors and makes recommendations regarding the 
status of the District’s Strategic Planning.   

• Government and Public Relations. This committee shall be responsible for monitoring of 
healthcare legislation and public policy and for advisement of the District Board of 
possible/probable impact on matters of the District as/when indicated and for the initiation 
of appropriate action as/when indicated. This committee shall be responsible for interface 
with other agencies, including other government levels, as well as the public; inclusive of 
speeches or public appearances, press releases, etc. for the purpose of edification of the 
District’s position/action on matters within the jurisdiction of the District. 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES.   

Special ad hoc committees may be appointed by the Chair for special tasks as circumstances 
warrant, and upon completion of the task for which appointed, such special committee shall 
stand discharged. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-02 Page 2 of 2 

Title: RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES OF 
         COMMITTEES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date:  _/__/24 

 
 

 

A committee chairperson may invite additional individuals with expertise in a pertinent area to 
meet with and assist the ad hoc committee.  Such consultants shall not vote or be counted in 
determining the existence of a quorum and may be excluded from any committee session.  A 
committee chairperson may exclude any or all consultants from attending a committee meeting.



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-03 Page 1 of 1 

Title: ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24 

 
 

 

It is the policy of District that members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular and 
special meetings of the Board unless there is good cause for absence. 
 
GUIDELINES: 
 

• Attendance at Board meetings shall be governed by the Brown Act (Gov. Code, 
§§ 54950 et seq., as amended). 
 

• For all absences, the Board member shall notify the Chief Executive Officer prior to the 
Board or Board Committee meeting in which they will be absent with the reason for the 
absence.  The CEO will subsequently notify the Chair of the absence and the reason. 
 

• A vacancy shall occur if any member ceases to discharge the duty of her/his office for 
the period of three consecutive regular meetings of the Board, or from three of any five 
consecutive meetings of the Board, except as authorized by the Board of Directors.  
(Health & Safety Code, § 32100.2). 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-04 Page 1 of 1 

Title: BASIS OF AUTHORITY AND 
 RELATIONS WITH STAFF AND  
 CONSULTANTS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of the District Board of Directors to serve as the unit of authority to set the policy 
of the District.    
 
GUIDELINES: 
 
The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the District.  Apart from her/his normal 
functions as part of this unit, Directors have no individual authority.  As individuals, Directors 
may not commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure. 
 
Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the community, but are rather, a part of the 
body that represents and acts for the community as a whole. 
 
RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 
 
The CEO shall report to the Board of Directors and shall be charged with the responsibility of 
the management of the District, including the employment and discharge of employees as 
necessary to carry out the day to day functions of the District.   
 
Board members shall deal exclusively with the CEO concerning all questions or activities related 
to the District.  Individual Board member shall not direct or assign tasks to the District’s 
employees, consultants, or contractors.  Any employee who believes that this policy has been 
violated shall immediately bring the matter to the attention of the CEO or the District General 
Counsel. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-05 Page 1 of 1 

Title: BOARD VACANCIES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It shall be the policy of the District to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors in accordance with 
Government Code Section 1770 et seq., as amended and as reflected in Article IV, Section 4.5, 
of the District Bylaws.   
 
Board vacancies created by the events enumerated in Government Code Section 1770 (a) 
through (l) shall be filled in the manner prescribed by Government Code Section 1780.   
 

• The Board may decide to fill the vacancy either by appointment or by calling an election.  
If the Board decides to appoint, it shall make the appointment within 60 days after either 
the date on which the Board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, 
whichever is later.  The District shall post a notice of the vacancy in three or more 
conspicuous places in the district at least 15 days before the Board makes the 
appointment.  The District shall notify the county elections official of the appointment no 
later than 15 days after the appointment.  

 
• If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 days prior to the 

next general district election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold office until 
the next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the date the 
District Board is notified of the vacancy, and thereafter until the person who is elected at 
that election to fill the vacancy has been qualified.  The person elected to fill the vacancy 
shall hold office for the unexpired balance of the term of office. 

 
• If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office, but less than 130 days prior to 

the next general district election, or if the vacancy occurs in the second half of a term of 
office, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall fill the balance of the unexpired term 
of office. 

 
The person thus appointed shall assume all committee assignments of the replaced Board 
member. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-06 Page 1 of 2 

Title: BOARD MEETING AGENDAS AND 
 DISTRICT CALENDAR 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to prepare an agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board 
of Directors and for standing committee meetings. 
 
AGENDA GUIDELINES: 
 
1. The CEO, after consultation with the Board Chair and Vice-Chair and with assistance from 

the General Counsel when needed, shall prepare an agenda for each regular and special 
meeting of the Board of Directors.  The Board Chair or any two Board members may call 
the Board Chair and request item(s) to be placed on the agenda no later than 5:00 p.m., 
five (5) business days prior to the meeting date.  

 
2. This policy does not prevent the Board from taking public comments at regular and special 

meetings of the Board on matters that are not on the agenda that a member of the public 
may wish to bring before the Board.  However, in accordance with the provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950-54926 (the “Brown Act”), the Board 
shall not discuss or take action on such matters at that meeting.  The Board may ask 
clarifying questions of public testimony. 

 
3. At least seventy-two (72) hours prior to all regular meetings and twenty-four (24) hours prior 

to all special meetings, an agenda that includes, but shall not be limited to, all matters on 
which there may be discussion and/or action by the Board, shall be posted conspicuously 
for public review within the District office in accordance with the Brown Act. 

 
The following outlines the agenda of both type meetings: 

 
 A. Call to Order 
 B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 C. Approval of Agenda 
 D. Public Comment 
 E. Reports/Presentations/Discussion/Possible Action Items 
 F. Next Regularly Scheduled Meetings/Information Items 
 G. Adjournment 
 
4. On occasion as needed, a closed session of the Board is required, properly announced, 

and conducted for only those purposes allowed in the Brown Act.  Closed sessions are 
generally held (but not limited to) following the open meeting agenda. 

 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-06 Page 2 of 2 

Title: BOARD MEETING AGENDAS AND 
 DISTRICT CALENDAR 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

DISTRICT CALENDAR 
 
The District’s CEO shall cause to be published and maintained on the District’s website a 
calendar to provide maximum advance notice of pending meetings.  The calendar shall include 
the date and time of regular Board meetings, special meetings, committee meetings, meetings 
of organizations in which the District is a member, significant symposia, and holidays observed 
by the District. 
 
Items for publication will be given to the Chief Executive Officer and the calendar shall be 
updated weekly.   
 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-07 Page 1 of 2 

Title:    BOARD MEETINGS AND   
 TELECONFERENCING 
            

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District that Board meetings are held in accordance with Article VI of the District 
Bylaws. 
 
REGULAR MEETINGS.  
 
Regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held on the second Wednesday of each 
month, at 6 p.m., on the 1st floor Community Room, Administrative Office, 138 S. Brandon Road, 
Fallbrook, California 92028; provided, however, that should said meeting date fall upon a legal 
holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same time on the next business day. This is the 
prerogative of the Board. 

 
ORGANIZATION MEETING.   

At an organizational Board meeting held annually in December, the Board shall organize by the 
election of one of its members as Chair, one as Vice Chair, and one as Secretary.  The Chair 
shall also appoint the Treasurer at the organizational meeting.  

SPECIAL MEETINGS.   

A special meeting may be called at any time by the Chair, or by three Board members, by 
delivering written notice including emails and/or texts to each Board member and to each local 
newspaper of general circulation, radio or television station requesting such notice in writing, 
personally or by mail.  Such notice must be delivered personally or by mail at least twenty-four 
(24) hours before the time of such meeting as specified in the notice.  The call and notice shall 
specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted.  No other 
business shall be considered at special meetings.  Such written notice may be dispensed with 
as to any Board member who at, or prior to, the time the meeting convenes, files with the 
Secretary a written waiver of notice. Such written notice may also be dispensed with as to any 
member who is actually present at the meeting at the time it convenes. 

QUORUM.   

A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  
The act of a majority of the Board members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present 
shall be the act of the Board. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-07 Page 2 of 2 

Title:    BOARD MEETINGS AND   
 TELECONFERENCING 
            

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT.   

The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or adjourned special meeting 
to a time and place specified in the Order of Adjournment.  Less than a quorum may so adjourn 
from time to time.  A copy of the Order or Notice of Adjournment shall be conspicuously posted 
on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held within twenty-four (24) hours after 
the time of the adjournment. 

RULES AND REGULATIONS.   

The Board may adopt rules and regulations governing the Board, the District, its facilities, and 
programs, which rules and regulations shall not conflict with these bylaws. 

RULES OF ORDER.   
 
Unless otherwise provided by law, the District bylaws, or Board rules, Board meeting procedures 
shall be in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised 12th Addition.  However, 
technical failures to follow Robert’s Rules shall not invalidate any action taken.  
 
TELECONFERENCING AND VIRTUAL MEETINGS  
 
The Board members shall be allowed to attend meetings via teleconferencing in accordance 
with Government Code Section 54953 as amended including holding meeting virtual meetings 
during a proclaimed state of emergency when state and local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing.  
 
Whenever practical, all meetings of the Board of Directors shall allow for the public to access 
the meetings using an internet-based service option and a call-in option. 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-08 Page 1 of 2 

Title:  BOARD MEETING CONDUCT 
           

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of the District to conduct meetings in a manner consistent with this Board Meeting 
Conduct Policy. 
 
GUIDELINES: 
 
1. When possible, all Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and 

shall be guided by the agenda. 
 
2. The conduct of meetings shall, to the fullest possible extent, enable directors to: 
 

(a) Consider problems to be solved, weigh evidence related thereto, and make prudent 
decisions; 

 
(b) Hear public comments and testimony; and 

 
(c) Receive, consider, and take action with respect to staff reports. 

 
3. To ensure that all members of the general public have the opportunity to participate in the 

meetings of the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, the Board has 
established provisions for permitting any individual or group to address the Board 
concerning any item on the agenda for a special meeting, or to address the Board at a 
regular meeting on any subject that lies within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District 
or any item on the agenda: 

 
3.1 It is the policy of the Board to allow three (3) minutes for any item not on the agenda 

that a member of the public identifies at the beginning of the meeting under the 
agenda item “Public Comment.” 

 
3.2 For agenda items, members of the public may speak for three (3) minutes any time 

prior to a vote. 
 

3.3 No disruptive and/or boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting.  
Persistence in disruptive and/or boisterous conduct shall be grounds for summary 
termination by the Board Chair of that person’s privilege of address.  If unacceptable 
conduct persists, the Board Chair may request removal of the person from the 
meeting and/or clear the room, allowing only accredited members of the press, for the 
duration of the meeting.  Only matters appearing on the agenda may be considered.  
The Board Chair may allow for those members of the public not responsible for the 
disruptive conduct back in the room if desired. 

 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-08 Page 2 of 2 

Title:  BOARD MEETING CONDUCT 
           

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

4. In order to adhere to this policy, the Board Chair/Chair of the meeting shall follow the 
procedures as outlines below: 

 
4.1 During the “Public Comment” agenda item, the Board Chair shall advise any members 

of the public wishing to address the Board on items not on the agenda that they may 
do so at this time upon completing a speaker’s slip form. 

 
4.2 After the staff presentation, and prior to Board action on each agenda item, members 

of the public and Board will be given an opportunity to speak on the agenda item. 
 

4.3 When appropriate, the Board Chair shall advise any member of the public wishing to 
address the Board that she/he will have a time limit of 3 minutes for each item. 

 
5. The Board Chair, or her/his designated alternate, are authorized to make exceptions to this 

policy during meetings.   



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-09 Page 1 of 1 

Title: BOARD ACTIONS AND DECISIONS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to conduct business in an orderly and comprehensive manner. 
 
GUIDELINES: 
 
1. Actions by the Board of Directors may include but are not limited to the following: 
 
 (a) Adoption or rejection of regulations or policies;  
 (b) Adoption or rejection of a resolution; 
 (c) Approval or rejection of any contract or expenditure; 
 (d) Approval or rejection of any proposal that commits District funds or facilities, 
including employment and dismissal of personnel; and 
 (e) Approval or disapproval of matters that require or may require the District or its 
employees to take action and/or provide services. 
. 
2. Action can only be taken or directed by the vote of the majority of the Board of Directors.  
Three (3) directors represent a quorum for the conduct of business.  Actions taken at a meeting 
where only a quorum is present, require two (2) votes to be effective (unless a 4/5 vote is 
required by policy or law). 
 
 2.1 A member abstaining in a vote is considered an affirmative vote for the action to 
be taken.   
 
  2.1.1 Example:  If three (3) of five (5) directors are present at a meeting, a quorum 
exists and business can be conducted.  If one (1) director abstains on a particular action and 
the other two (2) directors cast “aye” votes, the action is approved. 
 
  2.1.2 Example:  If an action is proposed requiring a two-thirds (2/3) vote and two 
(2) directors abstain, the proposed action cannot be approved because a four-fifths (4/5) vote of 
the directors present would have to vote in favor of the action. 
 
  2.1.3 Example:  If a vacancy exists on the Board and a vote is taken to appoint 
an individual to fill said vacancy, and three (3) of the (4) directors vote in favor of the 
appointment, it shall be approved.  If two (2) of the four (4) directors present vote against the 
appointment, the appointment is not approved.  If two (2) directors present vote in favor, one (1) 
against and one (1) abstains, the nominee is approved.



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-10 Page 1 of 2 

Title:  BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24 

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the Board. 
 
GUIDELINES: 
 
1. The Secretary shall have the responsibility to keep minutes of all regular and special 
meetings of the Board and shall be appointed by the Board pursuant to Policy #BOD-01.   
 
 1.1 Copies of a meeting’s minutes shall be distributed to directors as part of the 
information packet for the next regular meeting of the Board, at which time the Board will 
consider approving the minutes as presented or with modifications.  Once approved by the 
Board, the official minutes shall be kept and available for public review. 
 
 1.2 Unless directed otherwise, an electronic recording of regular and special meetings 
of the Board will be made.  The device upon which the recording is stored shall be kept in for a 
minimum of two (2) years, or in according with Policy OP-2, “Records Retention.”  Members of 
the public may inspect records of Board meetings without charge and access to a digital 
recording shall be made available on the District’s website.  Electronic recordings of committee 
meetings shall be optional.  
 
 1.3 Motions, resolutions, or ordinances shall be recorded in the minutes as having 
passed or failed and individual votes will be recorded for all actions.  All resolutions adopted by 
the Board shall be numbered consecutively.  In addition to other information that the Board may 
deem to be of importance the following information (if relevant) shall be included in each 
meeting’s minutes: 
 

(a) Date, place, and type of each meeting; 
(b) Directors present and absent by name; 
(c) Administrative staff present by name; 
(d) Call to order; 
(e) Time and name of late arriving directors; 
(f) Time and name of early departing directors; 
(g) Names of directors absent during any agenda item upon which action was 

taken; 
(h) Summary record of staff reports and recommendations; 
(i) Summary record of public comment regarding matters not on the agenda, 

including names of commentators if provided; 
(j) Approval of the minutes or modified minutes of preceding meetings; 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-10 Page 2 of 2 

Title:  BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24 

 
 

 

(k) Approval of financial reports; 
(l) Record by number (a sequential range is acceptable) of all warrants 

approved for payment; 
(m) Record of the vote of each director on every action item for which the vote 

was not unanimous and, if any, names, and reasons for abstentions from 
voting; 

(n) Resolutions described as to their substantive content and sequential 
numbering; 

(o) Record of all contracts and agreements, and their amendment, approved 
by the Board; 

(p) Approval of the annual budget; 
(q) Approval of all policies;  
(r) Approval of all dispositions of District assets; 
(s) Approval of all purchases of District assets; and, 
(t) Time of meeting adjournment. 



  
 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-11 Page 1 of 3 

 Title: MEETING COMPENSATION 
  GUIDELINES 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
Latest Revision Date:  _/__/24 

 
 

 

The Local Healthcare District Law authorizes the payment to Board members of $110.25 per 
meeting, as adjusted annually by 5% pursuant to Water Code 20203 not to exceed six (6) 
meetings per month, provided that if the District compensates its Board member for more than 
five (5) meetings per month, the Board may annually adopt a written policy based on findings 
supported by substantial evidence why more than five (5) meetings are necessary for the 
effective operation of the District.  In accordance with Health & Safety Code section 32103, the 
Board finds that the following facts substantiates the increase from five (5) to six (6) 
compensable meetings and constitutes meetings and occasions in performance of official 
duties for which a Board member may receive payment. 
 

1. The Fallbrook Regional Health District (DISTRICT) has a service area of 
approximately 110 square miles is in Northern San Diego County and serves a 
population of almost 60,000 residents.   

2. The Board of Directors is responsible for insuring that the unmet health care needs 
of the District residents are addressed, including providing approximately $1 million 
annually to support community healthcare programs and services. 

3. In addition to regularly monthly Board meetings, the Board holds Special Meetings to 
focus on more specific community needs and projects.  

4. Board members also serve on at least four (4) standing committees ranging from the 
Finance, Strategic Planning, Government & Public Engagement, and the Facilities 
Committee.  The Chair also appoints Ad hoc committees. 

5. In addition to Board and committee meetings, Board members, on behalf of the 
District, attend meetings, and educational conference workshops of organizations in 
which the District is a member including the Association of California Healthcare 
District and the California Special District Association. 

6. In addition to attendance at mandatory ethics and harassment training, Board 
members also conduct inspection meetings of District Grantee’s and attend meetings 
of non-political community groups that extend specific invitation to attend and which 
Board members actively participate in the programs and meetings. 

 
Board member may receive payment for attendance at the following: 
 
Attendance at Regular Board meetings, Special Board meetings, Standing and Ad Hoc 
Committee meetings and Board sanctioned meetings when attending as a representative of 
the DISTRICT and for trainings/educational activities which are required by law of members of 
a board of directors of a local agency in compliance with state mandated  ethics training 



  
 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-11 Page 2 of 3 

 Title: MEETING COMPENSATION 
  GUIDELINES 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
Latest Revision Date:  _/__/24 

 
 

 

(Government Code 53232.1) and harassment training (Government Code 53237.1).  Also 
attendance at training for Brown Act, legislative updates and webinars that constitute the 
performance of official duties.  
 
Sanctioned meetings also include: 
 

• Events sponsored by other local, county, or state government agencies at which 
DISTRICT is expected and/or invited to be represented and officially participate in, on 
behalf of DISTRICT; 

 
• Meetings and/or events of agencies of which DISTRICT is a member or subscribing 

participant and where DISTRICT is expected and/or invited to be represented.  For 
example:  Association of California Healthcare Districts (ADHD); California Special 
Districts Association (CSDA); San Diego Chapter of CSDA; 

 
and include occasions that constitute the performance of official duties, such as: 

 
• DISTRICT sponsored special events such as Community Collaborative Events 

(example:, Community Collaborative for Health and Wellness , Wellness Wednesday 
monthly meetings and Grant Workshops); 

 
• Activities promotional of special events of DISTRICT such as information booths, 

parades, distribution of information and/or materials for events; 
 

• Conducting review and/or inspections of CEO coordinated site visits of grant program 
applicants and/or recipients. 

 
Each representative attendance to be compensated at the rate of $110.25 per meeting, with 
limit of six (6) meetings a month, as provided in Health and Safety Code Section 32103.   
Request for compensation for attendance at sanctioned meeting(s) must be presented on 
Request for Compensation (Form 2040B) in accord with SOP Administration Policy 2040. 

 
Each member of the Board shall be allowed his or her actual necessary and reasonable 
traveling and incidental expenses in the performance of official business of the District. 
Travel expense (Form 2030A) or Request for Reimbursement (Form 2040A) forms must be 
completed and submitted to the Administrator for payment to be generated. 

 
A Director, at his or her discretion, may decline acceptance of compensation for Regular Board 
meetings, Special Board meetings and/or Standing Committee meetings and may decline 
to present Request for Compensation (Form 2040B) for sanctioned meetings. 



  
 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Policy #:  BOD-11 Page 3 of 3 

 Title: MEETING COMPENSATION 
  GUIDELINES 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
Latest Revision Date:  _/__/24 

 
 

 

 
Non-compensable meetings: 

 
1. Informal meetings with other Board members or with District staff or General Counsel, 

regardless of the topic(s) addressed. 
2. Meetings of a political nature, whether partisan or non-partisan, regardless of the topic(s) 

addressed. 
3. Meetings for which payment of a stipend or honorarium is provided by the host 

organization. 
4. Meetings of other public bodies, unless invited as a participant by the host body or sent 

as a delegate by the District Board. 
5. Meetings of organizations in which the member holds an individual membership or the 

primary purpose of which is to receive continuing professional educational credits. 
6. Charity fund raising events. 

 
In addition, each member of the Board shall be allowed his or her actual necessary traveling 
and incidental expenses in the performance of official business of the District in accordance with 
Government Code section 53232.2. 
 
Any questions regarding interpretation of these guidelines should be addressed to the 
DISTRICT’s General Counsel.



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-12 Page 1 of 1 

Title: ETHICS TRAINING AND EDUCATION 
 RELATING TO THE WORKPLACE 
  

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to ensure that District Board members and District staff shall receive 
training in ethics and education relating to workplace harassment.  
  
GUIDELINES:  
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 53234 et seq., all District Board members and 
designated staff are required to complete a minimum of two (2) hours of ethics training 
every two (2) years and the District shall maintain certificates of completion of ethics 
training for at least five (5) years. 

2. All District Board members and District staff are required to complete at least two (2) 
hours of training and education relating to workplace harassment every two (2) years. 

3. This policy shall also be incorporated into the District Employee Handbook. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-13 Page 1 of 5 

Title: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
            AND CODE OF ETHICS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to ensure complete transparency and follow The Political Reform Act which 
requires all public agencies to adopt and maintain a Conflict of Interest Code establishing the rules 
for disclosure of personal assets and the disqualification from making or participating in the making 
of any decisions that may affect any personal asset pursuant to the California Fair Political Practices 
Commission (“FPPC”) regulations (2 Cal. Code of Regs., sect. 18730) and any amendments to it 
duly adopted by the FPPC.   

 
A public official at any level of state or local government has a prohibited conflict of interest and may 
not make, participate in making, or in any way use or attempt to use his or her official position to 
influence a governmental decision when he or she knows or has reason to know he or she has a 
disqualifying financial interest.  A financial interest can exist when the decision impacts the official’s 
personal financial interests or the financial interests of a source of income to the official.  A financial 
interest can also exist when the decision impacts an asset or investment of the public officials, or a 
business entity in which the public official is associated by ownership, officer status, or employment.  
It is the responsibility of each Board member and officer of the District to identify any conflicts of 
interest, actual or potential, that they may have in a decision to be made or an action to be taken by 
the District.  If a Board member or officer becomes aware of an actual or potential conflict of interest, 
he or she shall promptly disclose the conflict or potential conflict to the Board Chair, the District 
CEO, or General Counsel.  

 
GUIDELINES: 

 
1. The District biannually adopts and files a Conflict of Interest Code with the Board of 

Supervisors for the County of San Diego.   
2. Pursuant to the District’s Conflict of Interest Code, the Board of Directors, Chief Executive 

Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Administrator Services, and persons holding 
designated positions are mandated to file FPPC Form 700 disclosure statements upon 
assuming office, annually by April 1, and upon leaving office. 

3. The disclosure categories listed in the Conflict of Interest Code identify the types of 
economic interests that the designated positions must disclose for each category.  Such 
economic interests are reportable if they are either located in or doing business in the 
jurisdiction, are planning to do business in the jurisdiction, or have done business during 
the previous two years in the jurisdiction of the District.  

4. The Conflict of Interest Code does not require reporting gifts from outside the District’s 
jurisdiction if the source does not have some connection with or bearing upon the functions 
or duties of the position. 

5. All officials and designated positions required to file a Form 700 statement of economic 
interests shall file their statements with the District’s designated filing officer, who shall 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-13 Page 2 of 5 

Title: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
            AND CODE OF ETHICS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

retain the originals and make the statements available for public inspection and 
reproduction.   

6. The District’s designated filing officer is the District’s Board Clerk. 

 
 

CODE OF ETHICS 
 
The Fallbrook Regional Health District designed its Code of Ethics & Values (the “Code”) to 
provide clear, positive statements of ethical behavior reflecting the core values of the District and 
the communities it serves. The Code includes practical strategies for addressing ethical questions 
and a useful framework for decision-making and handling the day-to-day operations of the District. 
The Code is developed to reflect the issues and concerns of today's complex and diverse society.  
a) To make Fallbrook Regional Health District a better District built on mutual respect and trust.  
b) To promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional conduct among 

all in-volved in District government, District staff, volunteers and members of the District's 
Board. All elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, members of advisory 
committees, and volunteers of the District, herein called “Officials” for the purposes of this 
policy.  

c) The Code is a touchstone for members of District Board and staff in fulfilling their roles and 
responsibilities. 

The proper operation of democratic government requires that decision-makers be independent, 
impartial and accountable to the people they serve. The Fallbrook Regional Health District has 
adopted this Code to promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional 
conduct in the District's government.  
All Officials, and others, who participate in the District's government are required to subscribe to 
this Code, understand how it applies to their specific responsibilities and practice its eight core 
values in their work. Because we seek public confidence in the District's services and public trust 
of its decision-makers, our decisions and our work must meet the most demanding ethical 
standards and demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in following this Code.  
 
Core Value: 
 
As participatory Officials in the District's government, we subscribe to the following Core Values: 
dedication, efficiency, integrity, objectivity, prudence, respect, and transparency for all members 
of our community. Our efforts support our commitment to being an inclusive entity as we 
continually seek to strengthen our institution as a place for personal and social development. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-13 Page 3 of 5 

Title: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
            AND CODE OF ETHICS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be ethical. 
a) I am trustworthy, acting with the utmost integrity and moral courage. I am truthful. I do 

what I say I will do. I am dependable. 
b) I make impartial decisions, free of bribes, unlawful gifts, narrow political interests, financial, 

and other personal interests that impair my independence of judgment or action. 
c) I am fair, distributing benefits and burdens according to consistent and equitable criteria. 
d) I extend equal opportunities and due process to all parties in matters under consideration. 

If I engage in unilateral meetings and discussions, I do so without making voting decisions 
or any im-proper or unauthorized representations on behalf of the District. 

e) I show respect for persons, confidences, and information designated as "confidential."  
f) I use my title(s) only when conducting official District business for information purposes or 

as an indication of background and expertise carefully considering whether I am 
exceeding or appearing to exceed my authority.  

g) I will avoid actions that might cause the public or others to question my independent 
judgment.  

h) I maintain a constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward the District’s affairs and a 
deep sense of social responsibility as a trusted public servant.  

 
As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District I will be professional.  

a) I apply my knowledge and expertise to my assigned activities and to the interpersonal 
relationships that are part of my job in a consistent, confident, competent and productive 
manner.  

b) I approach my job and work-related relationships with a positive, collaborative attitude.  
c) I keep my professional education, knowledge, and skills current and growing. 
 
As a Representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be service-oriented. 
a) I provide friendly, receptive, courteous service to everyone. 
b) I attune to and care about the needs and issues of citizens, public Officials and District 

workers. 
c) In my interactions with constituents, I am interested, engaged and responsive.  

 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-13 Page 4 of 5 

Title: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
            AND CODE OF ETHICS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be fiscally responsible. 
a) I make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking into account 

the long-term financial needs of the District, especially its financial stability.  
b) I demonstrate concern for the proper use of District assets (e.g., personnel, time, property, 

equipment, funds) and follow established procedures. 
c) I make good financial decisions that seek to preserve programs and services for District 

residents.  
d) I have knowledge of and adhere to the District’s Purchasing and Contracting and 

Allocation of Funds Policies.  
 
As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be organized. 

a) I act in an efficient manner, making decisions and recommendations based upon research 
and facts, taking into consideration short and long term goals. 

b) I follow through in a responsible way, keeping others informed and responding in a timely 
fashion. 

c) I am respectful of established District processes and guidelines. 
 
As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be communicative. 

a) I positively convey the District's care for and commitment to its citizens. 
b) I communicate in various ways, that I am approachable, open-minded, and willing to 

participate in dialog. 
c) I engage in effective two-way communication, by listening carefully, asking questions, and 

deter-mining an appropriate response which adds value to conversations.  
 
As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be collaborative. 

a) I act in a cooperative manner with groups and other individuals, working together in a spirit 
of tolerance and understanding. 

b) I work towards consensus building and gain value from diverse opinions. 
c) I accomplish the goals and responsibilities of my individual position, while respecting my 

role as a member of a team. 
d) I consider the broader regional and state-wide implications of the District's decisions and 

issues.  
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-13 Page 5 of 5 

Title: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
            AND CODE OF ETHICS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

As a representative of Fallbrook Regional Health District, I will be progressive. 
a) I exhibit a proactive, innovative approach to setting goals and conducting the District's 

business. 
b) I display a style that maintains consistent standards; but is also sensitive to the need for 

compromise, "thinking outside the box" and improving existing paradigms when 
necessary. 

c) I promote intelligent and thoughtful innovation in order to forward the District's policy 
agenda and District services.  

 
Enforcement: 
Any Official found to be in violation of this Code may be subject to Censure by the District Board. 
Any member of any advisory Committee found in violation may be subject to dismissal from the 
Committee. In the case of an employee, appropriate action shall be taken by the CEO or by an 
authorized designee. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-14 Page 1 of 2 

Title: EVALUATION PROCESS OF 
 THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to establish the methodology and schedule for evaluation of the 
performance of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). 
 
GUIDELINES: 
 

1. The CEO of the District is retained and serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors 
and has authority over operations, personnel matters, and authority to administer the 
District.  The Board of Directors shall review the performance of the CEO after the 
initial six months of service after appointment and then annually thereafter, using a 
process that allows Board members to provide a fair and collective evaluation to the 
CEO that provides for discussion and encourages feedback in the development of 
goals, objectives, and the implementation of the Board policies and the District 
Strategic Plan. 

 
2. Annually, the evaluation process will begin on a date that will support the process to 

accomplish the formal CEO Evaluation at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
held on the anniversary date of the initial six-month review of the CEO.  The Board of 
Directors have the responsibility for overseeing the CEO evaluation process each year 
and shall be assisted in the process by the General Counsel: 

  2.1  The Board shall review, and have the authority to modify and final the 
annual CEO evaluation form. 

  2.2 The General Counsel will confidentially send to the Board members an 
evaluation package that includes:  (a) the current year’s evaluation form, (b) the prior 
year’s evaluation summary, (c) the CEO’s annual goals and objectives, (d) the CEO’s 
report on the goals and objectives and the CEO’s contract.  

  2.3 Board members shall be encouraged to provide input on the CEO 
evaluation form and return the evaluation to the General Counsel at least three days 
prior to the scheduled formal evaluation meeting.   

  2.4 Upon return of the CEO evaluation forms, the General Counsel will 
prepare an evaluation summary for consideration of the full Board at a closed session 
evaluation meeting. 

 
3. The Chair, Vice Chair and the CEO shall meet after the annual evaluation to review 

the written goals and objectives for the subsequent evaluation period.  The goals and 
objectives should include expectations that coincide with the District Strategic Plan for 
the year.  The Char and Vice Chair may also meet with the CEO periodically during 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-14 Page 2 of 2 

Title: EVALUATION PROCESS OF 
 THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

the year to discuss and receive feedback from the CEO relative to her/his assessment 
in meeting the annual goals and objectives.  If requested, the District's General 
Counsel, may assist during the evaluation process. 

 
4. A copy of the evaluation summary should be provided to the CEO and a copy kept in 

the CEO's personnel file.  The performance evaluation shall be kept confidential. Any 
decision on an adjustment to the CEO’s compensation shall be made at a public 
meeting following the closed session evaluation meeting. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-15 Page 1 of 1 

Title: MEDIA RELATIONS  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of the District that members of the Board of Directors, contracted consultants, and 
employees should be aware of their responsibilities in their relations with the news media. 
 
In general, it is District policy to help and stimulate the press--newspapers, magazines, radio, 
and television--to report and interpret accurately and fairly the DISTRICT story to the public.  The 
District will accomplish this objective by issuing, in a timely manner, professionally prepared 
news releases and media advisories on matters of genuine news value and public interest.  
Other materials, such as abstracts or copies of speeches or commentaries presented by District 
spokes people at public forums, will also be made available to the media as appropriate. 
 
The principal spokesperson for the District Board is the Board Chair or CEO.  In general, media 
inquiries should be directed to the Board Chair for response.  At the same time, however, as 
publicly elected officials, all Board members are free to act independently in contacting the media 
or responding to direct media inquiries.  In addition, when serving as committee chairs, Board 
members will also be treated as spokesperson on programs and activities for which they are 
responsible. 
 
Whenever any Board member or District employee is contacted directly by the media, it is District 
policy that they should advise the CEO promptly as to the source and nature of the media 
contact.  The CEO is responsible to the Board for monitoring the news coverage that the District 
receives.  Written press releases or statements to the media must be approved by the CEO or 
his or her designee and proofed and initialed as to accuracy prior to sending to the media.  In 
making statements to the media, Board members should be alert to the need to qualify in 
advance their remarks as being “on the record” or “off the record.”  If statements are not qualified 
as “off the record” at the outset, it is assumed by the media that everything said is “on the record.” 
 
It is the policy of the District that Board members should: 
 
• At all times maintain good relations with the press.  Be friendly, polite, and even-tempered.  

Be truthful and frank. 

• Supply factual information willingly and promptly in response to inquiries from the press.  
Every name, fact, and figure must be accurate.  Remember, most reporters are working 
against a deadline.  “Old news” is unlikely to be published. 

• Limit statements to subjects related to District business and the healthcare industry. 

• Correct any misstatements and seek to clarify any misunderstandings. 

• Refrain from expecting or requesting any preference in treatment of news about 
the District because the District is an advertiser. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-16 Page 1 of 3 

Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION 
 POLICY 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Latest Revision Date: _/__/24  

 

 

 
1. Purpose of the Policy.  The purpose of this Ticket Distribution Policy (“Policy”) is to ensure 

that all tickets and/or passes that Fallbrook Regional Health District receives from public and 
private entities and individuals are distributed in furtherance of governmental and/or public 
purposes as required pursuant to FPPC Regulation Section 18944.1.  

 
2. Definitions. 
 

a. “District” shall mean the Fallbrook Regional Health District.  
b. “District Official” shall mean and refer to the District’s “public officials” as that term is 

defined by Government Code Section 82048 and FPPC Regulation Section 18701, as 
these sections are amended from time to time.  

c. “FPPC” shall mean the California Fair Political Practices Commission.  
d. “FPPC Regulations” shall mean the regulations of the FPPC set forth in Title 2, Division 

6, of the California Code of Regulations.  
e. “Immediate Family” shall have the same meaning as set forth in Government Code 

Section 82029 as the same may be amended from time to time.  As of the date of 
adoption of this Policy, the term “Immediate Family” is defined in Section 82029 as the 
official’s spouse and dependent children.  

f. “Policy” shall mean this Ticket Distribution Policy.  
g. “Ticket” shall mean a “ticket or pass” as that term is defined in FPPC Regulation 18944.1, 

as amended from time to time, but which currently defines a “ticket or pass” as admission 
to a facility, event, show or performance for an entertainment, amusement, recreational, 
or similar purpose.  

h. “Ticket Coordinator” shall be the District CEO or his or her designee who shall be the 
Agency Head responsible for implementing this policy, distributing tickets in accordance 
with this policy and completing and posting the FPPC Form 802. 

 
3. Tickets Covered by this Policy.  Tickets covered by this Policy include those:  
 

a. Gratuitously provided to the District by an outside source; and 
b. Acquired by the District by purchase. 

 
4. Limitations and Exclusions. 
 

a. This Policy shall only apply to the District’s distribution of Tickets to, or at the behest of, 
a District Official.  Consideration of equal or greater value shall be presumed if the 
Tickets are distributed pursuant to this Policy.  



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-16 Page 2 of 3 

Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION 
 POLICY 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Latest Revision Date: _/__/24  

 

 

b. This Policy shall apply only if the Ticket is (i) not earmarked by the original source of the 
Ticket for use by the specific District Official who uses the Ticket and (ii) the Ticket 
Coordinator determines in her/his sole discretion which official may use the Ticket.  

c. This Policy shall not apply to any other item of value provided to the District or District 
Official regardless of whether received gratuitously or for which consideration is provided 
as part of admission, such as food and beverages.  Any such item other than a Ticket 
may be reportable on the District Official’s Form 700 and be subject to state law and 
FPPC regulations related to gifts to public officials. 

d. This Policy does not apply to up to two ticket(s) or other admission to political fundraising 
event or non-profit (501(c)(3) exempt organization fundraisers that are provided directly 
to the District Official for use by the District Official and one other guest and does not 
involve the District.  Such tickets or admissions are not considered gifts or income in 
accordance with FPPC Regulation 18944.1.   

e. This Policy does not apply to any Ticket received by a District Official that:  
(i) The District Official treats as income consistent with applicable state and federal 

income tax laws and regulations and the District reports the distribution of the 
Ticket as income to the District Official; or 

(ii) For which the District Official pays the fair market value, or for which the District 
Official reimburses the original source of the Ticket in accordance with FPPC 
Regulations, or for which the District Official pays or reimburses the District for 
the fair market value; or 

(iii) Is a “gift” to the District Official in accordance with FPPC Regulations whether or 
not the District Official reports the gift on the District Official’s Form 700.  

f. This Policy does not apply to a Ticket provided to a District Official for his or her 
admission to an event at which the District Official performs a ceremonial role or function 
on behalf of District.  Such Tickets are exempt from disclosure or reporting requirements 
under FPPC Regulations in effect as of the date of the adoption of this policy.  
 

5. Ticket Distribution for Public Purposes.  The distribution of any Ticket by the District to, or 
at the behest of, a District Official shall be accomplished through a public purpose as defined 
below, or as otherwise considered and approved by the District Board of Directors where 
not listed herein.  The District may accomplish one or more of the following public purposes 
through the distribution of Tickets to, or at the behest of, a District Official: 

 
a. Support or promotion of the Fallbrook Regional Health District Foundation. 
b. Sponsorships of events, activities, or programs of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Foundation. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-16 Page 3 of 3 

Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION 
 POLICY 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Latest Revision Date: _/__/24  

 

 

c. Support or promotion of local nonprofit health care related charitable organizations and 
foundations.  

d. Sponsorships of events, activities, or programs of local nonprofit health care related 
charitable organizations and foundations.  

e. Sponsorship, promotion, or increasing public exposure to and awareness of the District’s 
mission to promote good health to the residents of the District.  

f. Sponsorships or promotion of special events in accordance with a District contract.   
g. Representation or promotion of District recognition, visibility, and/or profile on local, 

state, or federal levels.  
h. Recognizing or rewarding meritorious service of a District Official or employee. 

 
6. Purchase of Tickets or Passes.  District Officials may request the Ticket Coordinator 

purchase up to two (2) tickets in accordance with the public purposes of this Policy for use 
by the District Official, and an immediate family member (spouse or dependent child), or one 
other person.  

 
7. Transfer, Sale, and Reimbursement Prohibitions.  The transfer by any District Official of any 

Ticket, distributed to such District Official pursuant to this Policy, to any other person, except 
to members of the District Official’s Immediate Family for their personal use, is prohibited.  
No person receiving a Ticket pursuant to this Policy shall be permitted to sell, receive 
reimbursement for the value of, or further transfer any Ticket.  

 
8. Return of Tickets.  Any District Official or any member of the District Official’s Immediate 

Family, or any person or entity receiving a Ticket at the behest of any District Official, may 
return any unused Ticket to the Ticket Coordinator for redistribution pursuant to this Policy, 
provided such Ticket(s) is/are returned prior to the event taking place.  A District Official is 
not required to report on Form 802 any Ticket returned pursuant to this Section prior to the 
event taking place.  Any Ticket returned unused but after the event has taken place shall be 
deemed to have been used by the recipient and reported as such on Form 802.  

 
9. Website Posting.  This Policy shall be posted on the District website in a prominent fashion.  
 
10. Website Disclosure. The distribution of a Ticket pursuant to this Policy shall be posted on 

the District website in a prominent fashion within thirty (30) days after the Ticket distribution.  
Such posting shall use FPPC California Form 802, or such alternate form as may be 
designated from time to time by the FPPC, and in accordance with the reporting 
requirements specified under FPPC Regulation Section 18944.1(d).



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-17 Page 1 of 1 

Title AUTHORITY OF CEO DURING  
 EMERGENCY DECLARATION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 

 

 
In the event of a local, state or national emergency declaration and/or issuance of a public health 
order, authority as delineated below is provided to the CEO on an urgency basis to take action 
consistent with such emergency orders and the mission of the District, in the event the authority 
of the Board cannot be provided in a timely manner. The CEO shall consult on any such actions 
with the Board Chair and Vice Chair, if available. 
 
Any such action taken by the CEO shall be reported to the Board and public at the next regularly 
scheduled public Board meeting, or at an earlier scheduled special Board meeting, at which time 
the action shall be presented to the Board for ratification and confirmation, and if not so ratified 
and confirmed shall be void. 
 
Specific Delegation of Authority: 
 

During any period that such an emergency declaration and/or public health order is in 
effect, and timely action cannot reasonably be provided by the Board in a duly noticed public 
meeting, the CEO may take such action as he or she deems necessary to protect life and 
property, ensure the safety of personnel and the public, and preserve critical resources. Such 
actions may include, but are not limited to, the power to: 

 
(a) Close to the public any or all District owned and operated facilities and properties. 
 
(b) Request federal, state and/or local assistance in addressing such emergency. 
 
(c) Enter into contracts and incur obligations not-to-exceed of $25,000 as necessary 

to combat such emergency, protect the health and safety of persons and property, 
provide emergency assistance, and direct Finance staff to draw and to pay the 
necessary expenditures to respond to the emergency. 

 
(d) Employ temporary workers, rent equipment, and purchase supplies and materials. 
 
(e) Take such other actions as imminently necessary for the protection of life and 

property. 
 
Such powers shall be exercised in light of the urgency of the situation without regard to 

time-consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by District policy, with the exception of 
mandatory constitutional requirements, the requirements of competitive bidding, and publication 
of notices pertaining to the performance of public work. 
 

 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  BOD-18 Page 1 of 1 

Title EMPLOYMENT AND CONSULTING 
 PROHIBITION FOR FORMER  
 DIRECTORS  

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 

 

In addition to the provisions to California Political Reform Act Section 87406.3, as amended, 
which provides a one-year ban for former elected officials from representing any other 
person for compensation, by appearing before or communicating with their former agency 
in an attempt to influence agency decisions, it shall be the policy of the District that former 
District Directors shall be prohibited from being employed by the District or contracting with 
the District as a consultant for a period of one-year from the date that the Director formally 
leaves office. 
 

 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-01 Page 1 of 3 

Title: ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

The California Legislature has declared that access to information concerning the conduct of the 
people’s business is a fundamental and necessary right of every person in this state.  The 
California Public Records Act (“PRA”), Government Code sections 6250-6270, requires the 
District to make public records available for inspection by the public and to provide copies upon 
request.  The District has established the following guidelines to ensure that all person 
understand and are afforded the opportunity to use their right to access public records.  A copy 
of these guidelines will be provided free of charge upon request. 

 
GUIDELINES: 

 
1. “Public records” include any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the 

public’s business prepared, owned, used, or retained by the District regardless of physical 
form or characteristics.  “Writing” means handwriting, typewriting, printing, photocopying, 
photographing, transmitting by electronic mail or facsimile, and every other means of 
recording upon any tangible thing any form of communication or representation including 
letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols, or any combination thereof, and any record 
thereby created, regardless of the manner in which the record has been stored.  

 
2. Public records are open to inspection during District office hours, Monday through Friday, 

except for holidays.  Advance notice is not required to inspect public records; however, the 
inspection of records is subject to a rule of reason and must be consistent and available 
within the District offices. 

 
2.1 Records available for immediate inspection include the Statement of Economic Interest 

(FPPC Form 700) of designated District employees and this Access to Public Records 
Guidelines. 

 
2.2 It is the policy of the District that records not exempt from disclosure by state law will be 

open for public inspection with the least possible delay.  There is no charge to inspect 
records.  In order to prevent records from being lost, damaged, or destroyed during 
inspection, District staff may determine the location of and may monitor the inspection. 

 
3. While a written request is not required, the District prefers that all public records requests be 

in writing so that the District can more accurately identify the records sought and process the 
request more efficiently.  Requests may be in person, by phone, e-mail, or directed to the 
District’s office at the following address: 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-01 Page 2 of 3 

Title: ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

 Fallbrook Regional Health District 
 138 S. Brandon Rd. 
 Fallbrook, CA 92028 
 Telephone:  (760) 731-9187 
 Fax:  (760) 731-9181 
 E-mail:  www.fallbrookhealth.org 

 
Please include the following information in your request so that the District may respond to 
your request in a timely manner: 

 
3.1 A clear and specific description of the information you are requesting.  If possible, 

identify dates, subjects, titles, and authors of the records requested.  If needed District 
staff may ask for additional information if the request is not specific enough to permit 
identification of the records sought. 

 
3.2 Contact information is recommended so the District can get clarifying information if 

needed and send you a response or copies of records. 
 

3.3 The District strives to fulfill requests as soon as possible but not beyond ten (10) days 
from the date the request is received.  The District will determine whether the request, 
in whole or in part, seeks copies of disclosable public records in the District’s possession 
and notify the requestor of such determination.  In unusual circumstances, the 10-day 
time limit may be extended up to an additional fourteen (14) days by written notice to 
the requestor setting forth the reason for the time extension.  Unusual circumstances 
include: 

 
 3.3.1   The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or 

other establishments that are separate from the office processing the request; and 
 

 3.3.2   The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount 
of separate and distinct records that are demanded in a single request. 

 
3.4 If the District determines it will comply with the request, the records will be made 

available as promptly as possible upon payment, if required, of any applicable copying 
fees. 

 
3.5 Upon request, the District will make an electronic public record available in any 

electronic format in which the District holds the information. 
 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-01 Page 3 of 3 

Title: ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

3.6 The cost for all other copies is the direct cost of duplication or a statutory fee, if 
applicable. 

 
4. In balancing the public’s right to access public records with other rights and interests, 

including the individual right of privacy and the need for the District to be able to competently 
perform its duties, the Legislature has established certain categories of records that may be 
exempt from public disclosure under specified circumstances.  These include but are not 
limited to certain personnel records, investigative records, drafts, confidential legal advice, 
records prepared in connection with litigation, real estate appraisals and evaluations made 
relative to pending acquisition of property, trade secrets, communications with the Governor’s 
Office, and information that is confidential pursuant to other state or federal statutes. 

 
5. Upon a court order or receipt of a subpoena duces tecum (a notice to appear and to bring 

records or to produce records without appearance) should be forwarded to the CEO and the 
District’s General Counsel.  While a subpoena duces tecum is issued by a court, it is not 
always an order of the court declaring that the particular records are subject to disclosure.  
Such records may still be subject to protection against disclosure by reason of the existence 
of a privilege or other legal excuse.  Therefore, receipt of such a subpoena does not permit 
disclosure of records in and of itself and General Counsel shall determine the appropriate 
response. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-02 Page 1 of 5 

Title: RECORDS RETENTION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of District to provide guidelines regarding the retention or disposal of District 
records; provide for the identification, maintenance, safeguarding, and disposal of records in 
the normal course of business, ensure prompt and accurate retrieval of records, and ensure 
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. 

 
GUIDELINES: 

 
1. The California Secretary of State has issued local government records management 

guidelines in accordance with Government Code section 60200 et seq., which augments 
the authority of local governments and districts to establish records retention schedule. The 
District Board is authorized by the provisions of Government Code section 60200 et seq., to 
establish a records retention schedule applicable to District records.  The records retention 
policy assists the District in documenting the records that (i) require office or temporary 
storage, (ii) have historic or research value and (iii) should be destroyed because they no 
longer have any administrative, fiscal, or legal value. 

 
1.1 Authorization for Destruction of Records.  The record retention schedule, Exhibit “A”, 

is the approved schedule for the District which is in compliance with Government Code 
sections 60200 eq seq.  The schedule gives the time periods that documents must 
remain open/active for the public, the time period documents will remain closed (saved 
but may be boxed or in storage) and the process for destroying documents. 

 
1.2 Destruction of Records after Scanning.  Any record not expressly required by law to be 

filed and preserved in original form may be destroyed at any time after it is electronically 
stored in conformance with the requirements of Government Code section 60203. 

 
1.3 Destruction of Duplicates.  Pursuant to Government Code section 60200, any duplicate 

record, paper, or document which has the original or a permanent photographic copy 
of in the files of the District, may be destroyed after confirmation that the original or 
permanent photographic copy remains on file in the District. 

 
1.4 Retention of Records Not Mentioned.  All records, papers, and documents not 

mentioned in this policy may be scanned as archival records or destroyed so long as 
such disposal is consistent with the recommendations of the Local Government 
Records Management Guidelines as set forth by the Secretary of State as the same 
may be amended from time to time. 

 
1.5 Retained Records.  Pursuant to Government Code section 60201, the District shall 

retain records that: 
 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-02 Page 2 of 5 

Title: RECORDS RETENTION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

• relate to formation, change of organization, or reorganization of the District for should 
be retained indefinitely. 

• District ordinance unless it has been repealed or is invalid or unenforceable for a 
period of five (5) years;  

• minutes of a meeting of the legislative body of the District; 

• pending claims and litigation records for two (2) years after the disposition; 

• records that are the subject of appending Public Records Act request until the request 
is granted or two (2) years have passed since denial; 

• records of construction projects prior to notice of completion and release of stop 
notices, if any; 

• records related to non-discharged contracts or debts; records of title for District real 
property; 

• unaccepted construction bids/proposals until two (2) years old; 

• records that specify the amount of compensation paid to District employees, officers, 
or independent contractors until seven (7) years old; 

• records for which the administrative, fiscal, or legal purpose has not yet been fulfilled. 
  



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-02 Page 3 of 5 

Title: RECORDS RETENTION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

REVIEW PERIOD 
 

Record Series 
(Description) 

Open/ 
Active 

Closed Disposal NOTES 

Accident reports and logs 2 years 2 years Shred/Delete  
Accounting files, 
miscellaneous 

5 years 5 years Shred/Delete  

Accounts payable (vendor 
files, invoices, employee 
travel and expense records) 

1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  

Accounts receivable 1 year 4 years Shred/Delete  
Agendas, minutes, and 
supporting materials for 
Board/Committee packets 

1 year Indefinite Archive  

Agreements with agencies, 
firms, individuals 

1 year 5 years Shred/Delete Depending on type of 
agreement, some will be 
indefinite 

Appraisal reports 1 year 5 years Shred/Delete Originals to be filed in project 
file 

Audit reports 10 years 10 years Shred/Delete  
Bank statements (with 
cancelled checks) 

1 year 4 years Shred/Delete  

Board correspondence 1 year 4 years Shred/Delete Dispose after leaving the 
Board 

Budgets, annual 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Cash receipt books with 
backup and deposit tickets 

1 year 4 years Shred/Delete  

Claim or litigation on behalf 
of District 

1 year Indefinite Archive  

Claim or litigation against 
District 

 Indefinite Archive  

Computer maintenance files 1 year 3 years Shred/Delete  
Computer programs 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  
Computer tracking records 1 year 3 years Shred/Delete  
Conflict of Interest 
Statements 

1 year Indefinite Archive Include oath of office, 
economic statements, etc. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-02 Page 4 of 5 

Title: RECORDS RETENTION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

Record Series 
(Description) 

Open/ 
Active 

Closed Disposal NOTES 

General correspondence 
and preserved electronic 
documents 

1 year 2 years Shred/Delete  

Deeds 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Director’s compensation 
and reimbursement 

1 year 4 years Shred/Delete Dispose after director leaves 
the Board 

Director’s fees 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete Dispose after director leaves 
the Board 

Disability Claims 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Electronic mail 90 days 90 days  Shred/Delete  
Easements 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Employee records 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  
Employee records 
terminated 

1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  

Employee time records (i.e., 
payroll files) including 
deduction authorizations 
and overtime 

1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  

Employee travel and 
expense records 

6 years 6 years Shred/Delete  

Equipment maintenance 
records and contracts 

1 year 5 years Shred/Delete  

Financial reports, 
miscellaneous 

10 years 10 years Shred/Delete  

Financial statements, 
annual 

1 year Indefinite Archive  

Historical files (history of the 
District) 

1 year Indefinite Archive  

Insurance certificates and 
policies 

1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  

Inventory records 1 year 6 years Shred  
Investment portfolio 1 year Indefinite Archive Permanent for 

research/historical value 
Investments documents 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  
Lease Agreements 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete Permanent for 

research/historical value 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-02 Page 5 of 5 

Title: RECORDS RETENTION 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

Record Series 
(Description) 

Open/ 
Active 

Closed Disposal NOTES 

Ledgers, General and 
Journal 

1 year Indefinite Archive  

Legal opinions 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Policies and Procedures 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Resolutions 1 year Indefinite Archive  
Retirement plan 
agreements and related 
documents 

1 year Indefinite Archive Permanent for historic value 

Vehicle operation records 1 year 3 years Shred/Delete  
Vendor files, miscellaneous 
correspondence 

1 year 1 year Shred Dispose when no longer 
relevant 

Workers’ compensation files 1 year 6 years Shred/Delete  
 

*Schedule Instructions 
 

1. Records are Open/Active files for at least the period stated as a matter of general practice.  
After the Open/Active period has passed, to the extent possible, records will be identified 
to the applicable department for closure recommendation via electronic records 
management systems. 

 
2. Records placed in closed files will be retained for the scheduled period.  Notice to the 

applicable department will be made prior to disposal. 
 
3. The CEO shall have discretion to retain hard copies or scan the records for retention 

purposes. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 1 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The District is a government entity under the Local Health Care District Law (Statutes 
1945, Chapter 932; Health and Safety Code, Division 23, Sections 32000 et seq., of the 
State of California). The District serves residents of the Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow and 
De Luz areas of northern San Diego County. 
 
Created by residents for residents, Healthcare Districts throughout California provide vital 
services for the community members who create and oversee them. As the most 
responsive form of local government, Healthcare Districts are established, operated, and 
controlled by local voters who understand each community's concerns and ensure that 
each District is effectively meeting their local health care needs. 
 
DISTRICT MISSION: 

By directing resources to community nonprofits and engaging highly skilled staff, partners, 
and passionate volunteers, Fallbrook Regional Health District endeavors to offer health 
and wellness services to our served communities of Bonsall, De Luz, Fallbrook, and 
Rainbow. 
 
DISTRICT VISION: 

A California recognized Health District that delivers the highest quality health and wellness 
programs and services to support a greater life span for the local community. 

 

GUIDELINES 
PROGRAMS:    

The District provides grant funding through our Community Health Contract Grant process 
to organizations that meet the health and wellness needs of our community and are 
consistent with the District’s mission. 
The Health Care District Act (Health & Safety Code section 32121) has evolved over the 
years to provide very broad authority to Health Care Districts. Currently, Health Care 
Districts have numerous powers, which include the establishment, maintenance, and 
operation, or the providing of assistance in the operation of, one or more health facilities or 
health services, including but not limited to, outpatient programs, services and facilities; 
retirement programs, services, and facilities; chemical dependency programs, services, 
and facilities; or other health care programs, services, and facilities for the benefit of the 
people served by the district. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 2 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

Moreover, among other powers, the District may establish, maintain, and operate, or provide 
assistance in the operation of, free clinics, diagnostic and testing centers; health education, 
wellness, and prevention programs; rehabilitation, aftercare, and any other healthcare 
services; provider groups; and organizations that are necessary for the maintenance of 
good physical and mental health in the communities served by the District. 
 
POPULATION SERVED: 

The District provides grant funding through the Community Health Contracts (CHC) 
program. Community Health Contract funds must benefit the residents of the communities 
served by the Fallbrook Regional Health District. The District’s service area and sphere 
of influence area covers 110.57 square miles. This includes Bonsall, De Luz, Fallbrook, 
and Rainbow. Estimated population of the District is 50,985 (US Census, 2020). 
 
APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY: 

To be eligible for consideration, the applicant must meet the following requirements: 
 

1. The agency must be an incorporated nonprofit organization with a tax-exempt status 
under California state law and Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or be 
a public/governmental agency, program, or institution. 

 
Newly established agencies must: 
 
a. Demonstrate, through written agreement with a 501(c)(3) qualified agency that, 

for the one-year period of the CHC, they will fall under the auspices of that 
qualified agency. The agency providing the umbrella status must meet the 
District requirement of being an established provider of healthcare related 
preventive or intervention services to the public in the District community. 

b. Secure 501(c)(3) status within the CHC funded year. If they fail to secure 
501(c)(3) status, they will be ineligible for subsequent application for Fallbrook 
Regional Health District funding until such time as proof of 501(c)(3) status has 
been attained and presented. 
 

2. For-profit (commercial) organizations are eligible to apply but will only be considered 
if providing services that are not available by a nonprofit provider. All policies and 
requirements apply equally to for-profit and non-profit recipients. Including, but not 
limited to the inclusion of financial information, budgets and reporting or results. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 3 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

3. The agency must demonstrate the ability to provide services and/or programs that 
will benefit the residents of the District. 

4. Funded services must be provided within the District and demonstrate the ability to 
make services and/or programs easily accessible to District residents. 

5. Awarding contracts to underserved individuals will be taken under consideration; 
however, support for this application would likely be referred to a nonprofit partner 
to coordinate services. 

 
MULTIPLE APPLICATION SUBMISSIONS 

An agency may submit multiple grant applications per fiscal year for multiple programs. 
For example: If an agency operates two distinct programs, one dental clinic and one mental 
health clinic, the agency would be eligible to receive two district CHCs. 
 
PRIOR GRANT RECIPIENTS: 

Noncompliant or inefficient use of funds may render organizations ineligible for future 
funding. The District reserves the right to consider extenuating circumstances under which 
grants may be provided to prior grant recipients, and exceptions to these circumstances. 

 
INELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING: 

The District will not fund: 

• Endowments 
• Awarding grants to, and limiting funds for, foundations that are sponsored or 

controlled by, or associated with, a separate grant recipient. 
• Expenses related to fundraising or lobbying of public officials or other political 

purposes 
• Organizations intending to "pass-through" or re-grant District funds to other 

organizations; unless serving as the fiscal agent or umbrella for a designated 
local nonprofit. Funds must be clearly used to support District residents. 

• Basic research, defined herein as the pursuit of knowledge without immediate 
practical program or human applications 

• Sectarian purposes 
• Programs related solely to the provision of housing, or for employment 

opportunity and/or educational pursuits for the purpose of employment. 
• All other restricted uses contained herein. 
 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 4 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

REVIEW PROCESS: 
All CHC funding requests are reviewed by the District Chief Executive Officer and Board 
Directors. During the review process, the District may require additional information from 
applicants. This information may include oral or written clarification of CHC request detail. 
The District may include a panel of community stakeholders to review the completeness 
and merit of the applicants and provide feedback to the Chief Executive Officer. Final 
funding decisions will be made by the District Board of Directors at a public meeting. See 
application and review schedule for specific dates. Certain rights are reserved to Board 
discretion and action. 

RIGHTS RESERVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
The Fallbrook Regional Health District Board of Directors reserves the right to decline or 
accept application(s) upon fair consideration in accord with CHC guidelines established 
and provided to all applicants. On applications accepted and approved, the Board 
reserves the right to determine the amount of funding to be awarded.  The Board also 
reserves the right to adjust category designation in accord with its established criteria. 

APPLICATION CRITERIA: 
All CHC Grant applications must be able to demonstrate that health and /or wellness 
activities will meet the following criteria: 

1. Proposed program addresses the Social Determinant of Health paradigm, and must 
demonstrate how it positively addresses better health and/or wellness outcomes: 
o Economic Stability (Employment, Food Insecurity, Housing Instability, Poverty) 
o Education Access & Quality (Early Childhood Education and Development, 

Enrollment in Higher Education, High School Graduation, Language and 
Literacy) 

o Social & Community Context (Civic Participation, Discrimination, Incarceration, 
Social Cohesion) 

o Healthcare Access & Quality (Access to Health Care, Access to Primary Care, 
Health Literacy) 

o Neighborhood & Built Environment (Access to Foods that Support Healthy 
Eating Patterns, Crime and Violence, Environmental Conditions, Quality of 
Housing) 

 
2. At least 80% of FRHD funded program participants are District residents. 
3. At least 20% of proposed program’s budget is funded by another funding source/ 

in-kind support. 
4. Program has fully developed program goal(s) with corresponding SMART (Specific, 

Measurable, Achievable/Attainable, Realistic, Time-Bound) Objectives to 
demonstrate how those goals will be achieved. 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 5 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

a. Quarterly reports demonstrating progress of goal(s) and objective(s) will be 
required. If your program is a one-time event, only one report will be required 
by the next quarterly report due date. 

5. Programs or services should be able to demonstrate that they are developed from 
evidence-based program(s)/best practices. 

a. New programs, services or initiatives, should be able to demonstrate the need 
for this service, that there is no existing organization working toward the 
same goal, and/or that collaboration with an existing organization is 
anticipated. 

6. The application will list how and where acknowledgement of Fallbrook Regional 
Health District funding support will be included. This includes all print and electronic 
materials, press releases, website references, and any other form of written and 
verbal publicity that relates to the funded program. Acknowledgment should include 
an official sponsor line, as well as the FRHD logo. Examples of these 
acknowledgments are to be included in the quarterly report. 

7. While not a required element of proposals, programs that demonstrate 
collaborations with other agencies in the provision of the services will be viewed 
favorably in the reviewing process. 

 
APPLICATION AND EVALUATION SCHEDULE 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACT WORKSHOPS:  Informational session, Q&A, and 
collaborative brainstorming will occur in January where applicants will meet with District 
staff to understand how the application portal operates, clarify eligibility criteria and other 
technical aspects of the application. 

APPLICATION WINDOW:  Open, first business day in February at 10:00am, and 
closes on the last business day of the month at 4:00pm. Applications are accepted via 
an online portal accessible through the District’s website; 
https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health- contracts. 
 
Technical assistance from District staff is available upon request during the application 
window. 

 
APPLICATION EVALUTATION PERIOD:   
The Chief Executive Officer and staff will review each application for completeness 
before submitting copies to the Board of Directors. All applications are evaluated by 
each Board Director. Site visits may be scheduled. 
 

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-contracts
https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-contracts


 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 6 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF AWARDS: The Board of Directors may call a special meeting or 
announce the awards sometime within the month of April. The date and location for this 
meeting will be announced publicly and all applicants will be notified. 
 
DISTRIBUTION OF CHC GRANT AGREEMENT: Signed agreements must be returned to 
the District by the 1st Wednesday of July to complete execution prior to scheduling Quarter 
1 payments and/or site visits. 
 
QUARTER 1 PAYMENT AND SITE VISITS: Board of Directors and staff will begin making 
disbursements and or may conduct site visits during the month of July. 
 
Exact dates will be updated and posted on https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/calendar 
annually. 

 
REPORTING & PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION GUIDELINES:  By accepting the contract, the 
recipient agrees to periodic monitoring of their contracted program by District staff 
members. Recipient agrees to submit timely periodic written and/or oral reports to the 
Board as defined in the executed agreement and to participate in District Community 
Health Program events and attend, representatively, District Board meetings when 
requested. 
 
Reports must be submitted by the following due dates: 

1st Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of October 
2nd Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of January  
3rd Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of April 
4th Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of July 

 
Contract holders must contact the District if these deadlines cannot be met before the due 
date. Reports that are more than one month late may cause the contract to be cancelled. 

Payment Distribution will be on or after the following payment dates: 
1st Quarter Check: 1st Wednesday of July (may vary depending on July 4 holiday)  
2nd Quarter Check: 1st Wednesday of November 
3rd Quarter Check: 1st Wednesday of February  
4th Quarter Check: 1st Wednesday of May 

 
A District staff member will contact recipients to schedule a site visit when payment 
distributions will be made. Payment is contingent upon receival of quarterly reports. Board 
Member(s), the Chief Executive Officer and/or other District staff may be present at site visit. 

 

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/calendar


 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-03 Page 7 of 7 

Title: COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACTS/ 
 GRANT POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

SPONSORSHIP OF CHARITABLE EVENTS: 
The District does not currently provide sponsorships of charitable events.  However,        
support for these events may be considered at a future time, which would be publicly 
announced and would follow the below guidelines: 

1. Organizations requesting the District to sponsor a charitable event shall solicit in the 
form of a letter or in combination with a grant request application, as well as any 
appropriate back-up materials, including a list of sponsorship levels, if applicable. 

2. The request shall clearly indicate the amount requested, the sponsorship 
opportunity levels, and how the event will benefit a community health care program 
that provides services in the District. 

3. The request shall include the price per individual ticket/pass to attend, as well as 
the portion of the amount attributed to the purchase of goods and services. 

4. The request shall include a final accounting of the prior year’s event, if applicable, 
as well as a budget for the event being requested, so the District can clearly 
determine the cost of holding the event in comparison to the funds benefitting 
community health care programs.  No less than eighty percent (80%) of the revenue 
shall be applied to the organization’s programs and not to event expenses. 

5. Events advertised in brochures and/or fliers that give the appearance of being sent 
by the District as part of a mass mailing shall not be considered.



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-04 Page 1 of 2 

Title: USE/RENTAL OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

The District owns and operates various facilities to carry out its mission.  The District has 
determined that the public or other entities may be allowed to rent or use facilities that have been 
identified as appropriate for such use.  The Board of Directors of the District reserve the right to 
limit or prohibit use of facilities as may be necessary to meet District needs from time to time. 
The District’s procedure for use of facilities is as follows: 

 
 1. Organizations or individuals shall submit requests to the District’s CEO or Wellness 

Center Administrator in advance (30 calendar days or more) for use of one or more 
facilities. Requests should be submitted on the FRHD Facility Use Policy/Rental 
Agreement form which can be found on the District website 

   : https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/facility-use-request-form.  
  The CEO or Wellness Center Administrator will notify the applicant of approval or denial 

of the request within fifteen (15) days unless more information is required for a decision. 
 2. Organizations or individuals whose request is denied by the CEO or Wellness Center 

Administrator may request a hearing with the District Board of Directors for 
reconsideration of their request.  A hearing shall be held within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of such a request in writing outlining the reasons for the request and any explanation of 
the factors appealed by the applicant. 

 
The Board of Directors may establish a user fee and deposit fee schedule for various facilities by 
resolution using criteria and costs borne by the District for operation and maintenance of such 
facilities.  The user fee may be adjusted from time to time to reflect changes in costs of use and 
maintenance of the facility.   

 
 1. District staff shall collect a deposit and estimated use fee in advance of reserving a 

facility.  The deposit shall include a reasonable estimate of the clean-up and 
administrative time for handling the reservation.  The deposit may be refundable to the 
extent that clean-up costs are less than the de-posit, minus the administrative 
processing costs. 

 
A priority schedule for use of facilities may be established using the following general criteria: 

a) Use by the Registrar of Voters for elections; 
b) Community activities which directly benefit the District or its customers; 
c) Public or non-profit organizations for non-political or non-commercial uses; and 
d) Commercial or private uses to the extent that other users have not expressed an 

interest in use of the facility for that date at least 30 days in advance. 
 

Partisan or political activities may not be conducted in District facilities to avoid any implication of 
District involvement in such activities or use of public resources for those purposes. 

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/facility-use-request-form


 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-04 Page 2 of 2 

Title: USE/RENTAL OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

 
Any organization or individual requesting use of District facilities shall be required to provide 
special liability insurance coverage, on a form acceptable to the District, or compensate the 
District for special use insurance coverage if deemed necessary by the District.  If alcohol is to 
be served, an alcohol liability insurance rider is required. Any organization or individual 
requesting use of District facilities shall execute a waiver of liability form as deemed necessary 
by the District for each event in advance of final approval of the use of the facility.  
 
All requesting organizations will be required to comply with federal, state and local laws in the 
use of District facilities.  If special permits such as large gathering permits, fire or building code 
or use of alcohol permits are required, any preliminary approval of a use will be contingent upon 
satisfactory proof of compliance with all permit requirements before a final approval will be 
issued.  Failure to complete final permits requirements may be grounds for rejection or 
revocation of use approval and grounds for denial of future use requests. 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-05 Page 1 of 1 

Title: DELEGATING MINOR CLAIMS 
 SETTLEMENT TO CEO 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

 
It is the policy of the Fallbrook Regional Health District Board of Directors to provide an efficient 
procedure for handling minor claims filed against the District to an employee pursuant to 
Government Code section 935.4. 
 
Minor claims are considered claims that do not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000).  
 
The Board of Directors authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to take all administrative actions 
necessary to resolve minor claims against the District which do not exceed Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000). 

 



 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  OP-06 Page 1 of 1 

Title: STRATEGIC PLANNING  
 

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District is responsible for promoting health and wellness.  The 
Board of Directors has established a standing committee to monitor and make recommendation 
regarding the status of the District’s Strategic Plan. 
 
The Board of Directors will meet at least annually to assess, review, and update its strategic 
plan.  This may take the form of a retreat, workshop, special meeting, or part of a regularly 
scheduled meeting, as appropriate. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-01 Page 1 of 1 

Title: FINANCIAL OPERATIONS 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

It is the policy of the Fallbrook Regional Health District to comply fully with the financial statutes 
of the State of California as they related to healthcare districts. 

 
GUIDELINES: 

 
 1. The ultimate responsibility for the District’s financial position and direction rests with 
the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District (“Board”).   Issues such as strategic 
planning, investment guidelines, funding of projects, major purchases or expenditures, and 
operating budget are to be authorized at the Board level. 

 
 2. The Board has established a Finance Committee to provide advice to the Board of 
Directors, Board Treasurer and District staff.  

 
 3. The Chief Executive Officer is given the authority and responsibility for conducting the 
District’s business within the framework of the Board approved budget, policies, and governance.  
The Chief Executive Officer shall be held accountable to the Board for the financial performance 
of the District. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-02 Page 1 of 2 

Title: FINANCIAL INTERNAL CONTROLS 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

To maintain an appropriate level of internal control over the custody of cash, the Fallbrook 
Regional Health District (the District) Board of Directors centralizes signature authority with 
specific staff and Board members. 

 
Internal control, as effected by the District’s Board of Directors, management, and staff, provides 
reasonable assurance 1) that assets are safeguarded, 2) of compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, policies and procedures, and 3) of the reliability, accuracy, and timeliness 
of financial reporting. 

 
In safeguarding assets, whenever practical, the functions of authorization, custody, and recording 
shall be segregated among staff (i.e., not performed by the same individual).  When not practical, 
particularly due to limited staffing, overriding controls, such as oversight and approvals by the 
Board and management, will be implemented. 

 
Signature authority over each account maintained by the District shall be approved in separate 
resolutions, one for each account, in accordance with that financial institution’s requirements and 
with the following guidelines.  

 
There will be established procedures for the adequate separation of duties, including at least the 
following:  

a) receipt log of all cash/checks received is logged by an employee not in the Finance 
department - Receptionist; 

b) the Bookkeeper prepares or oversees the deposit and ensures it is made; either 
through a physical deposit to the bank branch or by using the check scanning 
machine and software provided by agreement with Five Star Bank; 

c) the bank reconciliation will be prepared promptly after month-end by the contracted 
bookkeeper, who has no authority to sign checks or authorize other debits against the 
account; 

d) all invoices presented for payment must be approved by either the CEO or Chief 
Administrative Officer; 

e) every check above $5,000 must be signed by two authorized signers; 
f) all paid invoices shall be so marked and filed for reference; 
g) the same employee cannot be responsible for authorizing transactions, collecting or 

paying bills, and maintaining accounting records, 
 

There will be an annual financial audit and any finding(s) shall be reported to the Board of 
Directors with simultaneous notice to the CEO. 

  
There will be biennial audits of the Property/Liability and Workers’ Compensation Program claims 
paid by the District and those report(s) will be promptly presented to the Board. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-02 Page 2 of 2 

Title: FINANCIAL INTERNAL CONTROLS 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

 
In regard to District’s cash reserve account in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), the 
District will maintain a balance for all programs, not to exceed the amount as currently authorized 
by LAIF guidelines, and that transfers out of LAIF may only be made to District's General 
Operating Account and must have the approval of one of the following individuals: 1) Chair, 2) 
Vice Chair, 3) Secretary of the Board, 4) CEO, 5) Treasurer of the Board. The requests for such 
transfers out of LAIF shall be signed by one of the five individuals above and be supported by 
detailed information which shall be maintained by District's Board Clerk.  

  
That other excess funds shall be deposited in or transferred to such long-term investment 
accounts as the Board may, from time to time designate by resolution; and 
  
That funds in the investment account(s) shall only be withdrawn upon approval of the Board's 
Chair, Vice-Chair, or Treasurer. Such withdrawals must then be remitted only to one of the 
checking accounts referred to in this policy. The requests for such transfers shall be signed by 
the CEO and be supported by detailed information which shall be provided to the Director 
approving the transfer. Such information shall be maintained by District's Board Clerk. 
  
To maximize interest earnings and manage District's cash flow needs, the CEO will strive to 
maintain a reasonable balance in the checking accounts to off-set monthly bank charges, but at 
the same time recognizing that surplus funds should be transferred as appropriate to LAIF or the 
long-term investment accounts.  
  
Templates for Fed-wire or Automated-Clearing House (ACH) Transfers out of the District’s bank 
accounts may only be established by the CEO. Subsequent use of these Fed-wire or ACH 
templates shall require two staff – an initiator and an approving staff person. 
  
The signing of any checks written on the accounts of the District will be in accordance with the 
District’s purchasing policy. All “fed wires” or ACH transfers that exceed $50,000 shall be 
considered similar to a “large check” and be disclosed monthly to the Board. 
  
Any payment of funds for claims and/or allocated loss adjustment expenses will be made in 
accordance with the District’s Claim Settlement Policy.   
 
The Board of Directors confirms that the Board will review these internal control policies upon 
completion of each year’s audit with input from its external auditor 

 
 

 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-03 Page 1 of 1 

Title: INVESTMENT POLICY 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District Board of Directors shall adopt an annual investment policy 
each year not later than the third Friday in May.  A copy of the current investment policy shall 
be available at the District office and posted on the District website. 

 
The investment policy shall conform with California Government Code section 53901 as 
amended. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Administrative Officer shall provide investment advice to 
the Finance Committee, which is the delegated investment authority, within the guidelines of the 
approved investment policy. 
 
The CEO and CAO shall also provide the Board of Directors with a statement of investments and 
current earnings not less frequently than quarterly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-04 Page 1 of 2 

Title: RESERVE POLICY 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Purpose: The District shall maintain reserve funds from existing unrestricted funds as designated 
by the District’s Reserve Policy. This policy establishes the procedure and level of reserve funding 
to achieve the following specific goals: 

a) Fund replacement and major repairs for the District’s physical assets. 
b) Fund regular replacement of computer hardware and software. 
c) Fund designated conservation projects/programs or other special uses not otherwise 

funded by grants or requiring additional monetary support; 
d) Fund capital improvements; and 
e) Maintain minimal operational sustainability in periods of economic uncertainty. 

 
The District shall account for reserves as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 54, which distinguishes reserves as among these classes: non-spendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. The reserves stated by this policy, unless 
otherwise required by law, contract, or District policy shall be deemed “assigned” reserves. 

 
Policy:  Use of District Reserves is limited to available “Unrestricted” Funds (not obligated by 
law, contract or agreement), including donations, interest earned, fees for service or other non-
grant earnings. All special use funds will be designated by formal action of the Board of Directors.  

a) Capital Improvement & Maintenance Reserve: Capital Improvements Reserve will 
accumulate from existing unrestricted funds at a rate of $5,000 annually. Designated 
Capital Improvement Funds may be used to cover major facility improvements 
(construction, installation of new doors or windows, replacing doors and windows, roof 
replacement, HVAC replacement, alarm system installation, parking lot and outside 
lighting improvements, etc.). The maximum amount of Capital Improvement Reserves 
will be $250,000. When the annual accumulation would increase the Reserve beyond 
$250,000, only the amount required to reach the maximum will be reserved.  

b) Administrative Operations Reserve: Operations Reserves will accumulate from 
existing unrestricted funds at a rate of that preserves an amount of 12 months 
operating expenses.  

 
Using Reserve Funds: 

a) Designated Project/Special Use Reserve: Projects, programs or special uses will be 
identified by the CEO and/or the Board of Directors and approved by the Board. Uses 
must further the mission of the District and will be evaluated for designation according 
to value to the District and the people it serves.  



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-04 Page 2 of 2 

Title: RESERVE POLICY 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

b) Capital Improvements Reserve: Capital Improvements Reserves shall be limited to 
costs related to making changes to improve capital assets, increase their useful life, or 
add to the value of these assets.  

c) Operational Reserves shall be accrued to ensure at least 12 months of minimal facility 
and administrative functions. Reserve funds shall be utilized to support: 

1. Administrative operational functions, including minimal staffing levels and 
administrative/office expenses; 

2. facility operations;  
3. facility repairs (distinguished from Capital Improvements and may include painting, 

caulking of seams, roof repairs, HVAC repairs, patching of walls, etc.). 
 

Monitoring Reserve Levels: The CEO, in collaboration with the District Accountant, shall 
perform a reserve status analysis annually, to be provided to the Board of Directors’ annual 
deliberation/approval of Budget and Reserve Funds.  

 
Additional information may be provided to the Board of Directors upon the occurrence of the 
following events: 

a) When a major change in conditions threatens the reserve levels established by this 
policy or calls into question the effectiveness of this policy; 

b) Upon CEO and/or Board request. 
 
A copy of the current investment policy shall be available at the District office and posted 
on the District website. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-05 Page 1 of 1 

Title: ANNUAL BUDGET 
  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District Board of Directors shall adopt an annual budget covering 
anticipated receipts and expenditures for the District’s fiscal year July 1 through June 30. 

 
The Finance/Audit Committee shall present to the Board of Directors the following documents: 

 
 Final Budget:    Not later than the third Friday in June 
 Mid-Year Review (if required): Not later than the third Friday in February 
 Year End Audit:   Not later than the third Friday in September 
 

The Chief Executive Officer will provide recommendations to the Finance/Audit Committee.  
Approval of the final budget and any revisions of the budget requires Board approval. 
 
Any consideration by the Board of Directors of potential expenditures of funds that will establish 
specific budget line items and/or that will result in revisions to the budget shall be considered 
for recommendation to the Board of Directors by the Finance/Audit Committee. 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-06 Page 1 of 2 

Title: CREDIT CARD USE/EXPENSE 
 AUTHORIZATION 
   

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

CREDIT CARD USE: 
 
PURPOSE:  The purpose of the Credit Card Use policy is to prescribe the internal controls for 
management of District credit cards. 
  
SCOPE:  This policy applies to all individuals who are authorized to use District credit cards 
and/or who are responsible for managing credit card accounts and/or paying credit card bills. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION:  A credit card shall be issued to the CEO, Wellness Center Administrator 
and Chief Administrative Officer or other staff as necessary. Credit cards shall not be issued or 
used by members of the Board of Directors. Directors will use their personal credit cards for 
lawful expenses of the District and seek reimbursement on a form provided by the District for 
that purpose. 

a) All credit card bills shall be paid timely to avoid late fees and finance charges. 
b) All credit card expenses shall be reasonable and necessary to the furtherance of 

District business. No personal expenses shall be charged on a District credit card.  If 
a transaction involves both personal and District business, the employee shall pay for 
the transaction personally and request reimbursement by the District of the 
appropriate portion of the expense. 

c) All credit card transactions shall have third-party documents (receipts) attached and 
the District purpose annotated by the cardholder. 

d) The CAO shall review and approve credit card transactions by the CEO.  The CEO 
shall review and approve credit-card transactions by the CAO and Wellness Center 
Administrator.  The credit card statement is part of the Finance Committee monthly 
meeting packet. 

e) All records of the District involving credit card use, including receipts, invoices, and 
requests for reimbursement are disclosable public records to be maintained 
consistently with the District’s records management policy. 

 
EXPENSE AUTHORIZATION: 
 
All purchases made for the District by staff shall be authorized by the CEO or CAO, and shall 
be in conformance with the approved District budget. 
 
Any commitment of District funds for a purchase or expense greater than $10,000.00 shall first 
be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval, or shall be in conformance with prior Board 
action and/or authorizations. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-06 Page 2 of 2 

Title: CREDIT CARD USE/EXPENSE 
 AUTHORIZATION 
   

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

 
A "petty cash" fund shall be maintained in the District office having a balance-on-hand maximum 
of $400.00. 

a) Petty cash may be advanced to District staff or Directors upon their request and the 
execution of a receipt for same, for the purpose of procuring item(s) or service(s) 
appropriately relating to District business.  After said item(s) or service(s) have been 
obtained, a receipt for same shall be submitted to the CEO or CAO, and any remaining 
advanced funds shall be returned.  The maximum petty cash advance shall be 
$100.00. 

b) No personal checks shall be cashed in the petty cash fund. 
c) The petty cash fund shall be included in the District's annual independent accounting 

audit. 
 
Whenever employees or Directors of the District incur "out-of-pocket" expenses for item(s) or 
service(s) appropriately relating to District business as verified by valid receipts, said expended 
cash shall be reimbursed upon request from the District's petty cash fund or by warrant request 
if needed. In those instances when a receipt is not obtainable, the requested reimbursement 
shall be approved by the CEO before remuneration.  The District has established a 
reimbursement request form and no reimbursement will be made without submission of a 
request on that form. 
 
Requests for reimbursement to the District must have a good faith basis.  Submission of a 
request for a reimbursement without such a basis shall subject the requestor to appropriate 
sanctions, up to and including termination of employment and referral to an appropriate law 
enforcement agency for prosecution. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-07 Page 1 of 2 

Title: TRAVEL AND REIMBURSEMENT 
 OF EXPENSES 
   

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__24  

 
 

 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Board Members, Employees and Volunteers of the District are entitled to reimbursement for 
actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official business. Including 
expenses relating to driving on District business (mileage), travel, meals, lodging and other 
actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official business and 
attendance at meetings and conferences on behalf of the District. Mileage shall be reimbursed 
in accordance with IRS regulations and lodging expenses shall not exceed the maximum group 
rate published by the conference or activity sponsor or the governmental rate, if available. 

1. Requests for reimbursement for travel expenses, mileage or meals must be 
submitted to the CEO for approval on form 2026A – Travel Expense 
Reimbursement. Receipts must be attached. Mileage will be reimbursed at then-
currently approved Internal Revenue Service rates. 

2. Mileage must be submitted to the CEO for approval on form 2030A – Travel 
Expense Reimbursement.  

3. All travel by District on official business outside the County of San Diego will require 
approval in advance from the CEO. FRHD will arrange and pay direct for airfare, 
lodging and conferences where practical for staff. 

4. Rental of automobiles for business must be approved in advance by the CEO. 
5. Meals & Incidentals (M&IE) reimbursement rates are set maximums per meal 

(Breakfast $17, Lunch $18, Dinner $34, Incidentals $5), per day day (maximum of 
$74). For travel lasting 24 hours or more, employees may claim meals (at the rates 
noted above), based on the following timeframes: 

a) First day of travel:  
Trip begins at or before 6 am - Breakfast may be claimed, Trip begins at 
or before 11 am - Lunch may be claimed, Trip begins at or before 5 pm - 
Dinner may be claimed 

b) Continuing travel after 24 hours: 
c) Trip ends at or after 8 am - Breakfast may be claimed, Trip ends at or after 

2 pm - Lunch may be claimed, Trip ends at or after 7 pm - Dinner may be 
claimed 

d) Fractional day travel (trips less than 24 hours): 
e) Trip begins at or before 6 am and ends at or after 9 am - Breakfast may 

be claimed, Trip begins at or before 4 pm and ends at or after 7 pm - 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-07 Page 2 of 2 

Title: TRAVEL AND REIMBURSEMENT 
 OF EXPENSES 
   

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 Board Approval Date: _/__24  

 
 

 
 

Dinner may be claimed, If the fractional day includes an overnight stay, 
receipted lodging may be claimed. No meal or lodging expenses may be 
claimed or reimbursed more than once on any given date or during any 
twenty-four (24)-hour period. 

6. Tipping: Reimbursement for tips related to allowable meal or transportation 
expenses incurred while conducting approved state business as follows:  up to 
$2.00 or 20%, whichever amount is greater. 

7. Alcoholic Beverages: Board and Staff shall not receive reimbursement for 
purchasing alcoholic beverages while conducting approved District business. 

8. Reimbursement forms must be submitted within 60 days from the date that the 
expense was incurred. 

Attendees of events that are at the expense of FRHD may be required to provide brief 
reports on the events attended at the next regular meeting of the committee that the 
attendee is a member of or at the next Board of Directors meeting. 

 
 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-08 Page 1 of 1 

Title: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

All payments will be by check or wire transfer.  All checks for expenditures over Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000) must be countersigned by either the Board Treasurer or Secretary.  Wire 
transfers must be approved by both the Chief Executive Officer and one other authorized signer 
per bank signature card. 

 
Vendors will be paid under the terms of conditions of the purchase and after verification that 
goods are received and vendor invoices conform to the purchase. 
 
Taxes will be paid under the terms and conditions of the laws and regulations governing such 
taxes.  Service agreements for work performed by others for the District will be paid under the 
terms and conditions of the service agreement, and after charges have been verified correct.  
The Chief Executive Officer must approve the service agreement. 
 
All other accounts payable not covered by purchase order or service agreement must be 
approved for payment by the Chief Executive Officer. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-09 Page 1 of 2 

Title: PURCHASING AND PROPERTY 
 CONTROL  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

1. Purchasing Policy. 
 

 The Board of Directors shall adhere to the purchasing and contracting guidelines of the Local 
Health Care District Law including the competitive bidding requirements of Health & Safety Code 
section 32132.  All obligation authority shall reside in the Board of Directors.  In order to facilitate 
the orderly conduct of the District’s business, the Board has delegated the authority set forth in 
this Purchasing Policy. 

 
 A. Specific Delegation of Authority. 

 
  (1) The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) is authorized to make purchases and 
contractual commitments in amounts specifically authorized by the Board. 

 
  (2) The CEO shall have unilateral authority not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars 
($10,000). 

 
  (3) The CEO shall have the authority to expend amounts not to exceed Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for needed supplies, equipment, and services without the prior 
authorization by a vote of the entire Board.  Procurements shall be neither divided into smaller 
segments nor accomplished incrementally in order to satisfy the $10,000 threshold.  

 
  (4) Routine, recurring, and budgeted items for which monthly billings are paid and 
for which annual outlay will exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), such as janitorial, security, 
general counsel, utilities, public relations consultant, legislative advocacy consultant, and the like, 
do not require separate Board approval from the authorized in the annual budget.  Inclusion in 
the annual budget constitutes Board approval.  However, any individual disbursement exceeding 
$10,000 to pay such expenses shall require two (2) check signers, including at least one 
authorized Board member. 

 
 B. Petty Cash (Impress Fund). 

 
  Petty cash may be utilized for purchases of One Hundred Dollars ($100) or less or to 
reimburse employees for job related out-of-pocket expenditures of $100 or less.  If a purchase 
under $100 is to be made with petty cash, obtain a Petty Cash Receipt from the petty cash officer.  
The data to be provided on the Petty Cash Receipt should include the following: 

 
  (1) Date of request; 
  (2) Name and signature of person drawing the funds; and 
  (3) Purpose for which the purchase is being made. 



 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

Policy #:  FIN-09 Page 2 of 2 

Title: PURCHASING AND PROPERTY 
 CONTROL  

 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 Board Approval Date: _/__/24  

 
 

 
 

 
  Fill in the requested information and draw the petty cash advance.  After the purchase 
has been made, the purchase receipt is to be given to the petty cash officer to be retained with 
the Petty Cash Receipt. 
 
  If an authorized purchase under One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) has been made by 
an employee using personal funds, reimbursement will be made from petty cash upon 
presentation of a purchase receipt and a properly completed Petty Cash Receipt. 
 
  The petty cash officer must balance petty cash funds and submit a request for 
reimbursement at least quarterly.  Reimbursements will be made only with appropriate receipts. 

 
 C. Credit Cards. 

 
  The use of credit cards shall be in accordance with Policy FIN-06 “Credit Card 
Use.” 
 

 D. Legal Review. 
 
  All contracts (a term which is defined as an all-inclusive description of 
contractual agreements whether on a District form or a vendor form) including purchase 
orders, leases, joint venture agreements, or grants shall be reviewed by the District’s legal 
counsel for legal sufficiency prior to execution on behalf of the District. 
 

2. Property Control. 
 

 Property purchased or leased by the District shall be recorded for purposes of accounting 
and an annual inventory to be completed in the month of July, for the prior fiscal year.  The CAO 
shall be in charge of all property records. 

 
3. Capitalization Threshold. 

 
Purchases of long-lived assets of less than Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) will be expensed. 


	_peach_Presentation 6.24.pdf
	05_01_Finance MINUTES.pdf
	1. Call to Order/Roll Call

	05_08_Boardof Directors_Minutes.pdf
	*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

	05_15_FACILITIES_MINUTES_RM.pdf
	1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
	In attendance- Director Jeffries and Director Mroz, CEO Rachel Mason, Community Health & Wellness Center Administrator Theresa Geracitano, Administrative Officer, Judith Oswald, Executive Assistant Raquel Williams, Property Manager Roy Moosa.
	2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – ANNOUNCEMENT –
	NONE

	06_05 FINANCE PACKET.pdf
	Report #1 - Balance Sheet Comparison.pdf
	Report #2 - ProfitandLossFiscal YTD.pdf
	Report #3A BudgetvsActuals FY 23-24 - Administrative+Class.pdf
	Budget vs. Actuals

	Report #3B BudgetvsActuals FY 23-24 - Wellness Center.pdf
	Budget vs. Actuals

	Report #7 - Check Detail.pdf
	Report 8A. UMPQUA Statement 04.30.24 (FRHD).pdf
	Report 8B. UMPQUA Statement 04.30.24 (JO).pdf
	06_05_Finance Agenda.pdf
	1. Call to Order/Roll Call

	2024.04 ComplianceReportSW (002).pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)
	CalTRUST
	California CLASS

	Report #9 - Community Disbursement D - v2.pdf
	Transaction List by Tag Group


	Allowance Expenditure Authorization_Change Order 1.pdf
	Allowance Expenditure Auth_WC Parking Lot.pdf
	Change Order #1_WC ADA Improvements.pdf
	FHAO A1.0_Scope Map.pdf

	GRANT AGREEMENT Ambulance.NCFPD.2024.pdf
	GRANT AGREEMENT
	As a result of the significant impacts and accumulated effects of the 2015 hospital closure, and the change in the way NCFPD now delivers Emergency Medical Services, NCFPD has approached FRHD for ongoing financial support in order to assure high quali...
	WILLIAM “BILL” LEACH, CHAIR
	Fallbrook Regional Health District
	138 S. Brandon Road
	EXHIBIT  1
	REPORT AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	FRHD will provide funds within 30 days of notice of NCFPD’s intent to purchase an ambulance.
	EXHIBIT  2
	PAPER AND DIGITIZED COPY OF GRANT APPLICATION IS MAINTAINED IN FRHD FILES WITH COPY OF FULLY EXECUTED AGREEMENT.

	Investment Policy_6_2024_red line.pdf
	Investment Policy_6_2024_CLEAN.pdf
	2024  Jo MacKenzie CSDA Candidate Statement.pdf
	PROVEN EXPERIENCE LEADING
	SPECIAL DISTRICTS
	• Dedicated
	• Fiscally Responsible
	• Committed to Special Districts

	6.5.2024 Letter of Support from VID President Richard Vasquez.docx.pdf
	YF_23.24 FALLBROOK BAND.pdf
	BFLL IMPACT REPORT.pdf
	BON_FALL_LITTLE LEAGUE IMPACT REPORT.pdf
	BFLL #8 Rodolfo-Reyna-III.pdf
	BFLL #4 Ashley-Briggs.pdf

	Draft Board Policy Manual (final).pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	POLICIES # OP - OPERATIONS
	BACKGROUND:
	DISTRICT MISSION:
	DISTRICT VISION:
	PROGRAMS:
	POPULATION SERVED:
	APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY:
	MULTIPLE APPLICATION SUBMISSIONS
	PRIOR GRANT RECIPIENTS:
	INELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING:
	REVIEW PROCESS:
	RIGHTS RESERVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
	APPLICATION CRITERIA:
	APPLICATION EVALUTATION PERIOD:

	06_12_Boardof Directors_Agenda.pdf
	*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
	I. CLOSED SESSION
	J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION
	NOTE: I certify that on Friday, June 7, 2024 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. The Ameri...

	GRANT AGREEMENT Ambulance.NCFPD.2024v2.pdf
	GRANT AGREEMENT
	As a result of the significant impacts and accumulated effects of the 2015 hospital closure, and the change in the way NCFPD now delivers Emergency Medical Services, NCFPD has approached FRHD for ongoing financial support in order to assure high quali...
	WILLIAM “BILL” LEACH, CHAIR
	Fallbrook Regional Health District
	138 S. Brandon Road
	EXHIBIT  1
	REPORT AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	FRHD will provide funds within 30 days of notice of NCFPD’s intent to purchase an ambulance.
	EXHIBIT  2
	PAPER AND DIGITIZED COPY OF GRANT APPLICATION IS MAINTAINED IN FRHD FILES WITH COPY OF FULLY EXECUTED AGREEMENT.

	06_12_Boardof Directors_Agenda.pdf
	*Please contact the Board clerk for language translation services 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
	I. CLOSED SESSION
	J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION
	NOTE: I certify that on Friday, June 7, 2024 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. The Ameri...




